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St. James Parish 
P. 0. Box 106 

Convent, Louisiana 70723-0106 

562-2300 265-3915 265-3156 

T.D .D . 562-2200 

office of the Legislative Auditor 
Attn: M s. Carmen W alker 
1600 Riverside North 
P. O . Box 94397 
Baton Rouge, LA 70804-9397 

Dear M s. W alker: 

M ay 14, 1999 

Dale J. H ym el, Jr. 
President 

In accordance w ith Louisiana Revised Statute 24:514, enclosed are the annual 
financial statem ents for the St. Jam es Parish Council as of and for the fiscal year 
ended Decem ber 31, 1998. The report includes all funds under the control and 
oversight of the Parish Council. The follow ing com ponent units w ithin the parish have 
been included w ithin the accom panying report, 

St. Jam es Youth Center 
Gas & W ater Distribution System 

St. Jam es Parish Clerk of Court 
St. Jam es Parish Hospital 

The accom panying financial statem ents have been prepared in accordance 
w ith generally accepted accounting principles. 

AJL:rm f 
Enclosures 

Sincerely yours, 

A . J. Laiche 
Director of Finance 

Jody P. Chenier 
Operations 
Director 

A. J. Laiehe 
Finance 
Director 

Earl A . W hite 
H um an Resources 

Director 

Gerald J. Falgoust 
Em ergency Preparedness 

D irector 
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N D EPEN DENT A U DITO RS' REPO RT 



l'osllc(h',vai|c & Net|orville 
A ProfesslaooJ Accounting Corporation 

2324 Sevcrn Avcnuc, Suilc A - Mctoiric, Louisiana 70001 1977 
relephone (504) 837-5990 " FAX (504) 83,t-3609 

www pncpo com 

To the President and M em bers 
St. Jam es Parish Council 
Convent, Louisiana 

ndeoendent Auditors' ReDo 

W e have audited the accom panying general purpose financial statem ents of the St. 
Jam es Parish Council, State of Louisiana, as of and for the year Decem ber 31, 1998 
as listed in the table of contents. These general purpose financial statem ents are the 
responsibility of the m anagem ent of St. Jam es Parish Council, State of Louisiana. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these general purpose financial statem ents 
based on our audit. W e did not audit the financial statem ents of the discretely 
presented com ponent units, St. Jam es Parish Hospital and St. Jam es Parish Clerk of 
Court. The financial statem ents of St. Jam es Parish Hospital reflect total assets of 
$7,128,085 as of M arch 31, 1998 end total revenues of $7,011,831 for the year 
ended M arch 31, 1998. The financial statem ents of St. Jam es Parish Clerk of Court 
reflect total assets of $776,777 as of June 30, 1998 and total revenues of $502,757 
for the year ended June 30, 1998. Those financial statem ents w ere audited by other 
auditors w hose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion on the general 
purpose financial statem ents, insofar as it relates to the am ounts included for the 
discretely presented com ponents units, is based solely on the reports of the other 
auditors. 

W e conducted our audit in accordance w ith generally accepted auditing standards and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governm ent Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Com ptroller General of the United States. Those standards 
require that w e plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
w hether the general purpose financial statem ents are free of m aterial m isstatem ent. 
An audit includes exam ining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the am ounts and 
disclosures in the general purpose financiaT statem ents. A n audit also includes 
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estim ates m ade by 
m anagem ent, as w ell as evaluating the overall general purpose financial statem ent 
presentation. W e believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion based on our audit end the reports of other auditors, the general 
purpose financial statem ents referred to above present fairly, in all m aterial respects, 
the financial position of the St. Jam es Parish Council, State of Louisiana, at Decem ber 
31, 1998 and the results of its operations and the cash flow s of its proprietary fund 
types and discretely presented com ponent unit for the year ended Decem ber 31, 1998 
in conform ity w ith generally accepted accounting principles. 
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The year 2000 supplem entary inform ation on page 116 is not a required part of the 
general purpose financial statem ents but is supplem entary inform ation required by the 
Governm ental Accounting Standards Board. W e have applied certain lim ited 
procedures, w hich consisted principally of inquiries of m anagem ent regarding the 
m ethods of m easurem ent and presentation of the supplem entary inform ation. 
How ever, w e did not audit the inform ation and do not express an opinion on it. In 
addition, w e do not provide assurance that St. Jam es Parish Council is or w ill becom e 
year 2000 com pliant, that St. Jam es Parish Council's year 2000 rem ediation efforts 
w ill be successful in w hole or in part, or that parties w ith w hich St. Jam es Parish 
Council does business are or w ill becom e year 2000 com pliant. 

In accordance w ith Governm ent Auditing Standards, w e have also issued our report 
dated M ay 14, 1999 on our consideration of St. Jam es Parish Council, State of 
Loulsiana's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its com pliance w ith 
certain provisions of law s, regulations, contracts and grants. 

Our audit w as perform ed for the purpose of form ing an opinion on the general purpose 
financial statem ents taken as a w hole. The com bining and individual fund financial 
statem ents and schedules listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and are not a required part of the general purpose financial 
statem ents of St. Jam es Parish Council, State of Louisiana. The accom panying 
schedule of expenditures of federal aw ards is presented for purposes of additional 
analysis as required by U. S. Office of M anagem ent and Budget Circular A-133, A udits 
of States, Local Governm ents, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required 
part of the general purpose financial statem ents of St. Jam es Parish Council, State of 
Louisiana. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 
the audit of the general purpose financial statem ents and, in our opinion, is fairly 
stated, in all m aterial respects, in relation to the general purpose financial statem ents 
taken as a w hole. 

M etairie, 
M ay 14, 

Louisiana 
1999 
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NDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COM PLIANCE AND 
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF GENERAL PURPOSE 
FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

PERFORM ED IN ACCORDA NCE W ITH GO VERNM EN T 
A UDITING STANDARDS 

To the President and M em bers 
St, Jam es Parish Council 
Convent, Louisiana 

W e have audited the general purpose financial statem ents of the St. Jam es Parish 
Council, State of Louisiana, for the year ended Decem ber 31, 1999 as listed in the 
table of contents, and have issued our report thereon dated M ay 14, 1999. W e 
conducted our audit in accordance w ith generally accepted auditing standards and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governm ent Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Com ptroller General of the United States. 

Com pliance 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about w hether St. Jam es Parish Council, 
State of Louisiana's general purpose financial statem ents are free of m aterial 
m isstatem ent, w e perform ed tests of its com pliance w ith certain provisions of law s, 
regulations, contracts and grants, noncom pliance w ith w hich could have a direct and 
m aterial effect on the determ ination of financial statem ent am ounts. How ever, 

providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our 
audit, and accordingly, w e do not express such an opinion, The results of our tests 
disclosed no instances of noncom pliance that are required to be reported under 
Governm ent A uditing Standards. 

nternal Control Over Financial ReDortJno 

In planning and perform ing our audit, w e considered St. Jam es Parish Council, State 
of Louisiana's control over financial reporting in order to determ ine our auditing 
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the general purpose financial 
statem ents end not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial 
reporting. Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting w ould not 
necessarily disclose all m atters in the internal control over financial reporting that 
m ight be m aterial w eaknesses. A m aterial w eakness is a condition in w hich the 
design or operation of one or m ore of the internal control com ponents does not reduce 
to a relatively low level the risk that m isstatem ents in am ounts that w ould be m aterial 
in relation to the general purpose financial statem ents being audited m ay occur and 
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not be detected w ithin a tim ely period by em ployees in the norm al course of 
perform ing their assigned functions. W e noted no m atters involving the internal 
control over financial reporting and its operation that w e consider to be m aterial 
w eaknesses. 

This report is intended solely for the inform ation and use of m anagem ent, others 
w ithin the organization, St. Jam es Parish Council end federal aw arding agencies and 
pass-through entities end is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone 
other than these specified parties. How ever, this report is a m atter of public record 
and its distribution is not lim ited. 

M etairie 
M ay 14, 

Louisiana 
1999 
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ST. JAMES PARISH COUNCIL 
Convent, Louisiana 

All Fund Types, Account Groups and Discretely Presented Component Units 
Combined Batance Sheet, December 31, 1998 
W ith Comparative Totals for December 31. 1997 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Time certificates of deposit 
Investment securities 
Investment in deferred compensation 
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles) 
)nterfund loans receivable 
Due from other funds 
Inventory 
Prepaid items 
Restricted assets 
Other assets 
Land, buildings, and equipment (net) 
Amount available In debt service funds 
Amount to be provided for retirement of 
ga~ ral long-term obligatio~  

Govern mental Fund Types 

General 
Fund 

$1,518,786 

715,255 

1,821,961 
1,300 

26 
27,718 

Special 
Revenue 
Funds 

Sewice 
Funds 

$ 3,626,505 $ 138,778 
500,000 3,500 

2,848~613 566,871 

5,570.225 1,592,217 

Projects 
Funds 

Proprietary 
Fund Types 

Enterprise 
Funds 

Internal 
Service 
Funds 

$ 279,300 $ 546,993 $ 884,189 

191,362 1,O78,272 231,747 

12,100 
144,500 

169,530 
82,269 

1,O07,670 
19,054 

15,278,046 

Total Assets and Other Debits $ 4,085,046 $12.810,875 $ 2,301,366 $ 627,262 $19,021,611 $1,230.716 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable 
Uabillty for claims 
Payroll deductions and withholdings payable 
Payable from restricted assets: 
Deposits 
Bond interest payable 
Bonded debt payable within one year 

Current portion of capital lease payable 
Current maturities of long-term debt 
Due to other funds 
Other liabillOas 
Deposits and escrow accounts 
Deferred revenues 
Caplt ar lease obligation 
Compensated absences 
Notes payabte 
Bonds or certificates of Indebtedness payable 
Intertund loans payable 
Total U~b~l~t~ss 

Fund Equity: 
Contributed capital 
Investment in general fixed assets 
Retained earnings: 
Reserved 

Total retained earnings 
Fund Balances: 
Resewed for debt service 

Total Fund Balance 
Total Fund Equity 

Total Liab]ities and Fund Equity 

$ 244,953 $ 488,942 $ 50,909 $ 

57.104 112,997 

60,957 
3,602 

366,616 

3,718,430 
3,715,430 
3,718,430 

1.300 144,500 
620.050 

12,290,815 
12,290,815 
12,290,615 

195.409 

2,105,957 

2,105,957 
2.105,957 

627,262 
627,262 
627.262 

$ 242,328 $ 958 
- 220,CO0 

66,826 

164,290 
53,055 
225,144 
3,629 

212,146 
80,820 

3,280 
260,812 

2,107,155 

565,151 
2,247,7t2 
2,812,863 

5,602,096 

220.958 

1,009,758 
1.O09,758 

$ 4,O65,046 $12,910.875 $ 2.301,366 $627,262 $18,021,611 $1,230,716 

The accompanying notes are en integral part of this statement 
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Fiduciary 
Fund Types 

$ 

Agency 
Fund 

1,606,440 

Totals 
Account Groups Primary 

G~ rat G~nend  Govemmen~ 
Fixed Long-term (Memorandum 
Assets Obligations Only) 

$ $ 7,093,554 
503.5C0 

5,632,120 
1,606,440 
9,855,060 
145,800 
395.555 
197,248 
82,269 

1,007,670 
19,054 

22,698,279 37,973,325 
2,105,957 2,105,957 

1,196,914 11,196,914 

Component Units 

St. Jsrm~s 
Parfsh 
Hospital 

St. James 
Ps~ish 
Clerk of 
Cou~ 

$ 1,004,728 $151,964 
535,112 

97,372 
117,157 

1,570,084 
345 

2,833,947 

26,393 

150 

3,780 

59,378 

Totals 
Reporting Entity 

(~er~.orand um Only] 

1999 1997 

$ 8,250,246 
1.038,612 
6,632,120 
1,606,440 
11,385,905 

145,600 
365,705 
294,620 
203,206 

2,577,754 
19.399 

40,866,650 
2,105,957 

$ 7,522,969 
970,150 

3,911,480 
1,413,811 
11,575.801 

689,500 
317,761 
284.024 
224,878 

2,792,277 
40,617 

99,516,680 
2,021,636 

11,196,914 11,957,997 

$ 1.606,440 $ 32,698,279 $13,302,871 $77,784,466 $ 7,129.085 $ 776,777 $85,689,328 $93,239,56 

1,606,440 

1,606,440 

$ 

496.08,7 
382,224 
118,560 

12,306,000 

13,302,871 

$ 1,028,090 $ 330,803 $ 
220,CO0 
236,927 

164,290 
53,085 
225,144 
3,629 

. 

273,129 
84,422 

1,606,440 
16,795 

499~67 
643,036 
118,560 

14,413,155 
145,800 

19,731,669 

12,789,233 
22,698,279 

39,742 

133,946 

975,854 

565,151 
3,257,470 6,152,231 
3,822,621 6,152,231 

2,105,957 
16,636,507 
18,742,464 

58,052,597 

5,150 
464,803 

472,990 

$ 1,361,930 
220,000 
236,927 

$ 1,276,445 
220,000 
220,407 

12,789,233 12,550,001 
59,378 22,757,657 2t,333,886 

565,151 
9,469,701 
9,974~852 

2,109,737 
16,677,136 
19,966,873 
64,508,615 

1~304,576 
8,223,400 
9.527,976 

2,025,416 
15,101.458 
17,126,874 
60,539,739 

$1,606.440 $22,698,279 $13,302.871 $77,784,466 $ 7,128,065 $776,777 $85,689,328 $ 83,238.56 



 

ST. JAMES PARISH COUNCIL 
Convent, Louisiana 

All Governmental Fund Types and Discretely Presented Component Units 
Com bined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures 

and Changes in Fund Balances 
For the year ended Decem ber 31, 1998 

W ith Comparative Totals for the year ended Decem ber 31, 1997 

Revenues: 
Taxes 
Licenses and perm its 
Intergovernm ental revenues 
Fines end forfeits 
Charges for services 
Interest earned 
In-kind contributions 
Other revenues 
Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 
General governm ent 
Public safety 
Highw ays and streets 
Sanitation 
Public transportation 
Health and w elfare 
Public housing 
Culture and recreation 
Econom ic development and assistance 

Capital outlay 
In-kind expenses 
Debt service: 
Principal 
Interest and bank charges 
Cost of issuance 
Total expenditures 

Governm ental Fund T 

General 
Fund 

$3,337,138 
332,410 
689,282 

141,198 
2,600 

105,832 
4.608,360 

2,402,196 
423,972 

194,O89 
1,840 

476,458 
246,612 
2,500 

Revenue 
Funds 

$ 7,256,972 

2,412,068 
137,203 
552,548 
385,217 
232,107 
241,289 

11,217,404 

Service 
Funds 

$1,619,225 

57,497 

81,860 
1,758,582 

Projects 
Funds 

$ 

21,580 

1,504,915 56,481 
1,267,224 
1,064,107 
1,073,275 
425,109 

1,276,974 
644 

1,242,434 
1,112,546 
1,451,938 161,746 
232,107 

Totals 
Prim ary Government 
(Memorandum 

Only) 

$12,213,335 
332,410 

3,101,350 
137,203 
552,548 
605,492 
234,607 
428,981 

17,605,926 

3,963,592 
1,691,196 
1,O64,107 
1,O73,275 
425,109 

1,471,063 
2,484 

1,242,434 
1,589,004 
1,860,296 
234.607 

1,o50,717 
589,078 
44,738 

16,301,700 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures 860,693 566,131 17,568 (140,166) 1,304,226 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Operating transfers in 
Proceeds of refunding bonds 
Proceeds from capital lease 
Proceeds from credit sales 
Proceeds from loans 
Donation of propBrty 
Operating transfers out 
Transfer to escrow agent 
interest on lease purchase 
Total other financing sources (uses) 

3,395 

94,856 

497,951) 

(399,700) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other 
sources over expenditures and other (uses 460,993 

Fund balance, beginning of year 
Fund balance, end of year 

3,257,437 
$3,718,430 

568,441 

386,779 
21,499 

85,500 
(420,107) 

. 

(9,793) 
632,319 

1,198,450 

11,092,365 
$12,290,815 

(750 
(2,159,534) 

66.753 

84.321 

2,O21,636 
$2,105.957 

243,645 

(59,420) 

164,225 

44,059 

583,203 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statem ent 

Statement B 
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906,518 
2,136,OO0 
481,635 
21,499 

85,500 
(978,228) 

(2,159,534) 
(9,793) 

483,597 

1.787.823 

16,954,641 
$18,742,464 



Component Unit 
St. Jam es 
Parish 

Clerk of Court 

$ 
3,600 

486,497 
12,660 

502,757 

418.197 

12,384 

430.591 

Totals 
Reporting Entity 
Memorandum Only) 

$12,213,335 
336,010 

3,101,350 
137,203 

1,039,045 
618,152 
234,607 
428,981 

18,108.683 

4,381,789 
1,691,196 
1,064,107 
1,073,275 
425,109 

1,471,063 
2,484 

1,242,434 
1,589,004 
1,872,680 
234,607 

1,050,717 
589,078 
44,738 

16,732,281 

$12,361,084 
355,019 

8,764,489 
185,799 
855,411 
539,909 
226,353 
690,984 

18.979.048 

978,869 
733,133 

16,380,625 

72,176 1,376,402 2,598,223 

72,176 

172,233 
$244.409 

906,518 
2,136,000 
481,635 
21,499 

85,500 
(978,228) 

(2,159,534) 
(9,793) 

483,597 

1,859,999 

17,126,874 
$18.986.873 

1,224,978 

7,288 

184,157 

1,224,979 

191.444 

2,789,667 

14,337,207 
$17,126,874 
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ST. JAM ES PARISH COUNCIL 
Convent, Louisiana 

Governm ental Fund Type - General and Special Revenue Funds 
Com bined Statem ent of Revenues, Expenditures 

and Changes in Fund Balances 
Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual 

For the year ended December 31, 1998 
W ith Com parative Actual Totals for the year ended December 31, 1997 

Revenues: 
Taxes 
Licenses and permits 
Intergovernmental revenues 
Fines and forfeits 
Charges for services 
Interest 
In-kind contributions 
Other 
Tota~ ~'evenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 
General governm ent 
Public safety 
Highw ays and streets 
Sanitation 
Public transportation 
Health and w eltare 
Public housing 
Culture end recreation 
Economic development and assistance 

Capital outlay 
In-kind expenses 
Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Operating transfers in 
Proceeds from capital lease 
Proceeds from credit sales 
Proceeds from loans 
Donation of property 
Operating transfers out 
Interest on lease purchase 
Total other financing sources (uses) 

General Fund 

Budget Actua 

$3,373,300 
322,500 
690,500 

146,100 
2,600 

108,100 
4,643,100 

2,406,900 
311,300 

t95,900 
2,400 

464,700 
307,900 

2,500 
3,691,600 

$3,337,138 
332,410 
689,282 

141,198 
2,500 

105,832 
4.608.360 

2,402,196 
423,972 

194,0B9 
1,840 

Variance 

Favorable 
(Unfavorable) 

$ (36,162) 
9,910 
(1,218) 

(4,902) 
(100) 

(2,268) 
(34,740) 

4,704 
(112,672 

1.811 
560 

476,458 (11,758) 
246,612 61,288 
2,500 

3,747,667 (56,067) 

1997 
Actual 

$3,318,189 
351,559 
941,001 

115,915 
2,568 

374,010 
5,103,242 

2,368,765 
328,578 

197,619 
1,800 

520,153 
57,375 
2,568 

3,476,656 

951,500 860,693 (90,807) %626,384 

12,500 
44,900 

(563,30O) 

(505,900) 

3,395 
94,856 

(497,951) 

(399,700) 

(9,105) 
49,956 

65,349 

106,200 

70,300 

(445,483) 

(375,183) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other 
sources over expenditures and other (uses) 445,600 460,993 15,393 1,251,201 

Fund balance, beginning of year 
Fund balance, end of year 

3,257,437 3,257,437 2,006,236 
$3.703,037 $3,718,430 $ lb,393 $3,257,437 ' 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement 

Statem ent C 
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Soecial Revenue Funds 

$ 7,278,400 

2,464,508 
134,500 
545,600 
355,170 
211,400 
211,400 

11,200,976 

650,617 
848,500 

1,299,370 
1,027,750 
1,079,500 
421,600 

1,275,805 
603 

1,289,950 
1,085,100 
1,084,500 
10,063,495 

Actual 

$ 7,256,972 

2,412,068 
137,203 
552,548 
385,217 
232,107 
241,289 

11,217,404 

645,099 
859,816 

%267,224 
1,064,107 
1,073,275 
425,109 

1,276,974 
644 

1,242,434 
1,112,546 
1,451,938 
10,419,166 

variance 

Favorable 
(Unfavorable) 

$ (21,428) 

(52,440) 
2,703 
6,948 
30,047 
20,707 
29,889 
16,426 

5,718 
(11,316) 
32,146 
(36,357) 
6,225 
(3,509) 
(1,169) 

(41) 
47,516 
(27,446) 
(367,438) 
(355,671) 

1997 
Actual 

$ 7,225,593 

2,372,876 
185,799 
489,710 
339,837 
223,785 
197,261 

11,034,861 

1,500,313 
1,088,604 
988,959 

1,053,240 
351,427 

1,176,342 

1,239,978 
1,032,385 
1,017,011 
223,785 

9,672,044 

1,137,463 798,236 (339,245) 1,862,817 

773,631 

21,600 

(604,700) 
190,631 

668,441 
386,779 
21,499 

85,500 
(420,107) 
642,112 

(205,390) 
386,779 

(1) 

85,500 
164,593 
451,481 

413,183 
7,288 

184,157 

(728,774) 

(124,146) 

1,328,114 1,440,350 112,236 1,236,671 

- 9,853,694 
$ 1,328,114 $ 1,440,350 ~ 112,236 $11,092,365 
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ST. JAMES PARISH COUNCIL 
Convent, Louisiana 

Governmental Fund Type - Debt Service and Capital Projects Funds 
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures 

and Changes in Fund Balances 
Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual 

For the year ended December 31, 1998 
W ith Comparative Actual Totals for the year ended December 31, 1997 

Revenues: 
Taxes 
Intergovem mental 
Interest 
Other 
Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 
General govern ment 

Capital outlay 
Debt Service: 
Principal 
Interest and bank charges 
Cost of issuance 
Total expenditures 

Exce ss (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures 

Other financing source s (uses) 
Operating transfers in 
Proce eds of refunding bonds 
Operating transfers out 
Transfer to escrow agent 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Debt Service  Funds 

Actual 

$1,621,100 $1,619.225 

55.700 
81,900 

1.758,700 

57,497 
81.860 

1,758,582 

59.400 56.481 

1,050,717 
590,468 
44,700 

1,745,285 

1,050,717 
589,076 
44,7,36 

1.741.014 

Favorable 

$ (1,875) 

1,797 
(40) 
(118) 

1997 
Actual 

$1,8t7,302 

52.311 
119,713 

1,989,326 

2,919 62,086 

1,390 

(38) 
-  

4.271 

978,869 
733,133 

13,415 17,568 4,153 215,238 

50.000 
2.136,000 

~31) 
(2,160.100) 

25.169 

91,037 
2,136,000 

(750) 
(2.159,534) 

66,753 

41,037 

(19) 
566 

41,584 

63,700 

~ ,705 

Exce ss (deficiency) of revenues and other 
sources over expenditures and other (uses) 38,584 84,321 45,737 278,938 

Fund balance, beginning ofyear 
Fund balance, end ofyear 

2.021,636 
$ 2,060,220 

2,021,636 
$ 2,105,957 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement 

Statement D 
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1,742,698 
$ 2,021,536 



Capital Projects Funds 

Budget Actual 

178,300 181,746 

Favorable 
(Unfavorable) 

1997 
Actual 

$ 
450,612 
20,407 

471,019 

16,554 1,091,531 

178.300 161.746 16.554 1.091.531 

(158,100) (140,166) 17,934 (620,512) 

250,600 

(52,300) 

198,300 

40.200 

583,203 

243,645 

~9,420) 

184,225 

44,059 

583,203 

(6,955) 

(7,120) 

(14.075) 

3,859 

677,795 

~0,722) 

627,073 

6,561 

576,642 
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ST. JAM ES PARISH COUNCIL 
Convent, Louisiana 

All Proprietary Fund Types and Discretely Presented Component Units 
Com bined Statem ent of Revenues, Expenses and 

Changes in Retained Earnings 
For the year ended Decem ber 31, 1998 

W ith Comparative Totals for the year ended December 31, 1997 

Operating revenues: 
Charges for sa)es and cervices 
Ad valorem tax and other taxes 
Other 
Total operating revenues 

Operating expenses: 
Cost of sales and services 
Payrolls 
General end adm inistrative 
Depreciation and am ortization 
Total operating expenses 

Operating income (loss 

Nonoperatlng revenues (expenses): 
Interest incom e 
Interest expense 
Grants 
Other 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses 

Income (loss) from continuing operations 
before operating transfers 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Operating transfers in 

Total other financing sources (uses 

Net income (loss) from continuing operations 

Discontinued operations 

Net income (loss 

Retained earnings 
Retained earnings 

beginning of year 
end of year 

Proprietary Fund Types 
Internal 

Enterprise Service 
Funds Fund 

~5,073,169 
214,407 
135,983 

5,423,559 

1,201,330 
2,181,615 
1,220,448 
666,277 

5,269,670 

$1,047,575 

1.047.575 

724,623 

169,432 

894.055 

Totals 
Prim ary Governm ent 

(M emorandum 
Only) 

46,120,744 
214,407 
135,983 

6,471,134 

1,925,953 
2,181,615 
1,389,880 
666,277 

6.163.725 

153,889 153,520 307,409 

102,134 50,628 
153,358) 
164,177 

225 

113,178 

267,067 

267,067 

267,067 

2,545,796 
$2,812,863 

50,628 

204,148 

204,148 

204,148 

805.610 
$1,009.758 

The accom panying notes are an integral part of this statem ent. 

Statement E 

17 

162,762 
153,358 
164,177 

225 

163.806 

471,215 

471,215 

471,215 

3,351,406 
$3,822,621 



Com ponent Unit Totals 
St. Jam es Reporting Entity 
Parish (Memorandum Only) 

Hospital 1998 1997 

$5,773,942 
1,035,384 

43,955 
6.853.281 

2,679,869 
2,680,130 
953,317 
366,294 

6,679,610 

$11,894,686 
1,249,791 
179,938 

13,324,415 

4.605,822 
4,861,745 
2,343,197 
1,032,571 

12,843,335 

$10,081,751 
1,261,705 
169,297 

11,512,753 

4,634,430 
4,756,654 
2,463,273 
993,074 

12,847,431 

173,671 481,080 (1,334,678 

125.300 
(9,273 
33,250 
(3,583 

145,694 

278,062 
162,631) 
197,427 
(3,358) 

309,500 

284,553 
(214,278) 
172,229 

(600) 
191,704 

319,365 790,580 (1,142,974 

85,053 
85,053 

319,365 790,580 (1,057,921 

343,704) (343,704) (1,915,219 

24,339) 446.876 (2,973,140) 

6,176,570 
$6,152,231 

9.527,976 
$ 9,974,652 

12,501,116 
$ 9,527,976 
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ST. JAM ES PARISH COUNCIL 
Convent, Louisiana 

All Proprietary Fund Types and Discretely Presented Component Units 
Combined Statem ent of Cash Flows 

For the year ended Decem ber 31, 1998 
W ith Com parative Totals for the year ended Decem ber 31, 1997 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Operating income (loss) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income 
to net cash provided by operating activities 
Depreciation and am ortization 
Provision for uncollectible accounts 
W rite off of uncollectible accounts 
Loss on disposal of capital assets 

Changes in assets and liabilities: 
Accounts receivables 
Inventory 
Prepaid expenses 
Accounts payable 
Payroll deductions and w ithholdings payable 
Liability for claim s 
Due to (from) other funds 
Accrued expenses 
Other liabilities 
Com pensated absences 
Deferred revenue 
Custom ers' deposits 
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities: 
Operating transfers in 
Donations/grants received ~ 
Net cash provided by noneapital financing activities 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities: 
Principal repaym ent of debt 
Interest paid on debt 
Additional borrowings of long-term debt 
Repaym ent of long-term debt 
Acquisitions and construction of capital assets 
Contributed capital 
Repaym ent of capital lease borrow ings 
Transfer to escrow agent 
Grant from state government 
M iscellaneous payments 
Net cash used for capital and related financing activities 

Proprietary Fund Types 

Enterprise 
Funds 

Internal 
Service 
Fund 

Totals 
Prim ary Governm ent 

(Memorandum 
Only) 

$ 153,889 $153,520 $ 307,409 

666,277 
10,605 
(3,786) 

(34,670) 
(5,192) 
12,296 
93,800 
7,590 

35,047 

(4,926) 
17,651 
(35,000) 
29,630 
943,211 

164,677 
164,677 

(269,949 
(106,786 

(427,288) 
35,908 
(3,322) 
(72,055) 
100,000 

(275) 
(743,769) 

(1,475} 

958 

The accom panying notes are an integral part of this statem ent. 

Statement F (continued 
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666,277 
10,605 
(3,786) 

(36,145J 
(5,192) 
12,296 
94,758 
7,590 

35,047 

(4,926) 
17,651 
(35,000) 
29,630 

1,O96,214 

164,677 
164,677 

(269,949 
(106,768 

(427,288) 
35,908 
(3,322) 
(72,055) 
100,000 

(275) 
(743,769) 



Com ponent Unit 
St. Jam es 
Parish 
Hospital 

Totals 

Reporting Entity 
M emorandum Only) 

1998 1997 

$ (170,033) $ 137,376 $ (3,249,897) 

445,060 
538,547 

(944,168) 
(8,879) 
9,376 

105,257 

(576,884) 

7,972 

(593,752) 

33,250 
33,250 

(9,273) 
189,400 
(20,711) 
309,497) 

(3,5831 
(153,664) 

1,111,337 
549,152 
(3,786 

980,313 
(14,071 
21,672 
200,015 
7,590 

35,047 
(576,884) 
(4,926) 
25,623 
(35,00O) 
29,630 
502,462 

1,020,371 
745,185 
(83,848 

897 

2,104,259 
25,153 
78,960 

(473,385) 
2,065 

(25,OOO) 
69,365 
317,454 
3,767 

(19,054) 
(60,000) 
23,822 

480.114 

85,053 
197,927 172,729 
197,927' 257,782 

(269,949) 
(116,061) 
189,400 
(20,711) 
(736,785) 
35,908 
(3,322) 
(72,055) 
100,000 
(3,8581 

(897,433) 

(245,315) 
(216,750) 
18,347 
(2,O32) 

(195,659) 
38,746 
(3,040) 

(1,300} 
(607,003) 



 

ST. JAM ES PARISH COUNCIL 
Convent, Louisiana 

All Proprietary Fund Types and Discretely Presented Com ponent Units 
Com bined Statem ent of Cash Flow s 

For the year ended Decem ber 31, 1998 

W ith Comparative Totals for the year ended Decem ber 31, 1997 

Cash flow s from investing activities: 

Cash returned for security deposits 
Interest received on investm ents 
Cash invested in assets w hose use is lim ited 
M aturation of certificates of deposits 
Purchase of certificates of deposits 
Proceeds from sale of investm ents 
Purchase of investm ents 
Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 

Supplem ental disclosures of Gash flow inform ation: 
Noncash capital and related activities: 
Utility plant, property and equipm ent contributed 
by subdividers 

Bond issuance costs paid 
Proceeds from bonds issued to refund capital debt 

Proprietary Fund Types 

Enterprise 
Funds 

102,073 

120,000 
(150,000) 
28,400 

(480,637) 
(380,164 

(16,045 

1,040,642 

$1,024,597 

$ 103,324 
$ (18,816) 
$ 900,000 

Internal 
Service 
Fund 

50,628 

11,895 

38,733 

Totals 
Prim ary Government 

(Memorandum 
Only) 

152,701 

120,000 
150,000) 
28,400 

492,532) 
341,431 

191,736 175,691 

792,453 1,833,095 

$984,189 

$ 
$ 
$ 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 

Statement F (concluded) 

$ 2,008,786 

$ 103,324 
$ (18,816) 
$ 900,000 



Com ponent Unit 
St. James 
Parish 
Hospital 

20,605 
125,300 
373,564 

519,469 

Totals 
Reporting Entity 

(M emorandum Only) 
1998 1997 

20,606 
278,001 
373,564 
120,000 

(150,000) 
28,400 

~492,632) 
178,038 

4,905 
241,454 

(100,441) 
105,000 
(120,000) 
88,628 

(252,411) 
(32,865 

194,697) (19,006) 98,028 

1,199,425 3,032,520 2,934,492 

$ 1,004,728 

$ 
$ 

"

$ 

$ 3,013,514 

$ 103,324 
$ (18,816) 
$ 900,000 

$ 3,032,520 

$ 50,223 
$ 



ST. JAMES PARISH COUNCIL 
Convent, Louisiana 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

INTRODUCTION 

The St. James Parish Council is the govern ing authority for St. James Parish and is a political subdivision of 
the State of Louisiana. The Parish Council is govern ed by seven Councilmen representing the various 
districts within the parish. The councilmen serve fu ur-year terms which expire on January 8, 2000. 

Louisiana Revised Statute 33:1236 gives the Parish Council various powers in regulating and directing the 
affairs of the Parish and its inhabitants. The more notable of those are the power to make regulations fur 
their own govern ment, to regulate the construction and maintenance of re ads, bridges, and drainage 
systems, to re gulate the sale of alcoholic beverages, and to provide for the health and welfare of the poor, 
disadvantaged, and unemployed in the Parish. Funding to accomplish these tasks is provided by ad valorem 
taxes, sales taxes, service charges, beer and alco holic beverage perm its, state revenue sharing, and various 
other state and federal grants. 

To fulfill its responsibilities to the poor, disadvantaged, and unemployed in the Parish, the Padsh Council may 
provide for specialized health service programs, emergency food and medical assistance, family planning 
assista nce, recreation and serv ice centers for the elderly, co nsum er educa tion, agricultural assistance, and 
econom ic development activities. To provide funding for these activities, the Parish Council, in addition to 
loca l funding sources, perform s th e functions of a co m m unity action agency under the term s and provisions 
of the United States Eco nom ic Opportunity Act of 1964. 

1. SUM MARY OF SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES 

A. BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

The accompanying financial statem ents of the St. James Parish Council have been 
prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to 
governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the 
accepted standard-setting body for esta blishing govern menta l accounting and financial 
reporting pdnciples. 

B. REPORTING ENTITY 

As the govern ing authority of the Parish, for reporting purposes, the St. James Parish 
Council is the reporting entity for St. James Parish. The financial reporting entity co nsists of 
(a) the primary govemment (Parish Council), (b) organizations for which the primary 
government is financially accountable, and (c) other organizations for which the nature and 
significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would 
ca use the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14 established criteria 
for determining which co mponent units should be co nsidered part of the St. James Parish 
Council for financial reporting purp oses. The basic criterion for including a potential 
Co mponent unit within the reporting entity is financial accountability. The GASB has set forth 
criteria to be considered in determ ining financial accountability. The criteda includes: 



 

St. Jam es Parish Council 
Convent, Louisiana 

Notes to the Financial Statem ents (Continued) 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

1. Appointing a voting majority of an organization's governing body and 

a. The ability of the Parish Council to impose its will on that 
organization and/or 

b. The potential for the organization to provide specific financial 
benefits to or impose specific financial burdens on the Parish 
Council. 

2. O rganizations for which the Padsh Council does not appoint a voting 

majority but which are fiscally dependent on the Parish Council. 

3. Organizations for which th e reporting entity financial statements 
would be m isleading if data of the organization is not included 
because of the nature or significa nce of the relationship. 

Based on the previous cdteda, the Padsh Council has determ ined that the following 
component units are part of the reporting entity: 

Cdteda Type of 
Component Unit Fiscal Year End Used Presentation 

St. James Parish Gas & W ater 
Distribution System June 30 1,3 Blended 

St. James Youth Center Dece mber 31 1,3 Blended 

St. James Parish Clerk of Court June 30 2,3 Discrete 

St. James Parish Hospita l March 31 1,3 Discrete 

Complete financial statements for each of the individual compo nent units may be obtained at 
the entity's administrative office s, exce pt for the St. James Youth Center, which does not 
issue separate financial sta tem ents. 

The St. James Parish Council reporting entity's financial statements do not include the 
component units that are multi-padsh component units. The multi-padsh component units 
include: 

Multi-Parish Component Unit Fiscal Year End Component Unit of 

Asce nsion-St. James Airport & Transportation Authodty June 30 Ascension Padsh 

District Attorney of the Twenty-third Judicial District Dece mber 31 Ascension Parish 

Twenty-third Judicial Distdct Indigent Defender Board Dece mber 31 Ascension Parish 
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St. Jam es Parish Council 
Convent, Louisiana 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Considered in the determinations of component units of the repo rting entity were the 
St. James Parish School Board, St. James Parish Assessor, St. James Parish Sheriff, and 
the vadous municipalities in the Padsh. It was determ ined that these govern mental entities 
are not co mponent units of the St. James Parish Council reporting entity. All are governed 
by independently elected officials. The Padsh Council oversight unit neither appoints 
governing Boards nor designates managemenL Furthermore, the Parish Council has no 
ability to significantly influence operations, nor does it have any accountability for fisca l 
matters of the entities. They are co nsidered by th e Parish Council to be separate 
autonomous governments and issue financial statements separate from those of the St. 
James Parish Council reporting entity. 

The St. James Parish Council is responsible for appointing the members of the board of the 
St. James Housing Authority. The Councit's acco untabitity for the Housing Authority does 
not extend beyond making the appointments. It was determ ined that the St. James Housing 
Authority is a related organization to the St. James Padsh Council. 

Co FUND ACCOUNTING 

The Parish Council uses funds and account groups to report on its financial position and the 
results of its operations. Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal co mpliance and 
to aid financial management by segregating transactions relating to certain govern ment 
fu nctions or activities. 

A fu nd is a separate accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. On the oth er 
hand, an account group is a financial reporting device designed to provide acc ountability for 
certain assets and liabilities that are not recorded in the funds beca use they do not directly 
affect net expendable available financial resources. 

Funds of the Parish Council are classified into three ca tegodes: governmenta l, propdetary, 
and fiduciary. Each category, in turn , is divided into separate fund types. The fund 
classifica tions and a description of each existing fund type follow: 

Governmental funds are used to account for all or most of the Parish Council's general 
activities, including the collection and disbursement of specific or legally restdcted monies, 
the acquisition or construction of genera l fixed assets, and the servicing of general long-term 
debt. Govern mental funds include: 

1. General Fund - the general operating fu nd of the Parish Council which accounts for all 
financial resources, exce pt those required to be acc ounted for in other fu nds. 

2. Special revenue funds - acco unt for the proceeds of specific revenue source s that are 
legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. 
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St. Jam es Pariah Council 
Convent, Louisiana 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

3. Debt service funds - account for transactions relating to resources retained and used for 
the payment of intere st and principal on those long-term obligations recorded in the 
general long-term obligations account group. 

4. Capital projects funds - account for financial resources received and used for the 
acquisition, construction, or improvement of capital facilities not being financed by 
pro prietary funds. 

Proprietary funds are used to account for activities similar to those found in the private 
sector, where the determination of net income is necessary or useful to sound financial 
administration. Proprieta ry funds differ from govern mental fu nds in that their focus is on 
inco me measurement, which, together with th e maintenance of equity, is an important 
financial indicator. Propdeta ry funds include: 

1. Enterprise funds - account for operations (1) where the intent of the governing body is 
that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the 
general public on a co ntinuing basis be financed or recovered pdmarily through user 
charges, or (2) where the governing body has decided that pedod ic determination of 
revenue earn ed, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appre priate for ca pita l 
maintenance , public policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes. 

2. Intern al service funds - account for the financing of goods or services provided by one 
departm ent to other departments or govern ments on a co st-reimbursement basis. The 
Parish Council has one internal service fund for health insurance. 

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held on behalf of outside parties, including 
other governments, or on behalf of other fu nds within th e Padsh Council. Fiduciary fu nds 
include: 

1. Agency funds - account for assets that the Parish Council holds on behalf of others as 
their agent. Agency funds are custod ial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not 
involve measurement of results of operations. 

Fixed assets used in governmental fund type operations (general fixed assets) are 
accounted for in the general fixed assets account group, rather than in governmental 
funds. Public domain or infrastructures are not capitalized. Interest co sts incurred during 
co nstru ction are not ca pitalized. No depreciation has been provided on general fixed 
assets. All fixed assets are valued at historica l cost. 
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St. Jam es Parish Council 
Convent, Louisiana 

Notes to the Financial Statem ents (Continued) 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Long-term obligations expected to be financed from govern mental funds are accounted for 
in the general long-term obligations account group, not in the govern mental funds. 

The two account groups are not funds. They are concerned only with the measurement of 
financial position, not with measurement of results of operations. 

D. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 

The accounting and financial reporting treatm ent applied to a fund is determ ined by its 
measurement focus. All govern mental funds are accounted for using a current financial 
resources measurement focus. W ith this m easurement focus, only current assets and 
current liabilities are generally included on the balance sheet. Operating statements of 
these funds present increases and decreases in net current assets. The modified accrual 
basis of accounting is used by all govern mental f~nds. The govern mental funds use the 
following practices in recording revenues and expenditures: 

Ad valorem taxes and the related state revenue sharing (which is based on population and 
homesteads in the padsh) are recorded in the year assessed. Ad valorem taxes are 
assessed on a calendar year basis, become due on November 15 of each year and beco me 
delinquent on December 31. The taxes are genera lly collected" in December of the current 
year and January and February of the ensuing year. 

Federal and state gra nts are recorded when the Council is entitled to the funds. 

Interest income on time deposits is re corded when the time deposits have m atured and the 
income is available. 

Sales and use tax revenues are recorded when collected by the Council's co llection agent, 
the St. James Padsh School Board. 

Substantially all other revenues are recorded when they become available to the Council. 

Expenditures 

Expenditure s are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when 
th e re lated fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term 
obligations, which are recognized when due, and compensated absence s, which are 
recognized when leave is actually taken or when employees (or their heirs) are paid for 
accru ed leave upon retirem ent or death. 
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t. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Other Financina Sources (Uses 

Transfers between funds that are not expected to be repaid (and any other financing 
source/use) are accounted for as other financing source s (uses). 

All proprietary fu nds are accounted for on a flow of eco nom ic re sources measurement focus 
and a determ ination of net inco me and capital maintenance . W ith this measurement focus, 
all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of these fu nds are included on the 
balance  sheet. The proprietary funds use the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are 
recognized when eamed, and expenses are reco gnized at the time liabilities are incurred. 
The propdetary funds apply all applica ble GASB pronounce ments as well as any of the 
pronouncements issued on or before Novem ber 30, 1989, by Financial Accounting Standard 
Board (FASB), Accounting Principles Board (APB), and the Committee on Accounting 
Procedure unless those pronouncements conflict with or co ntradict GASB pronouncements. 

E. BUDGET PRACTICES 

The proposed budget fo r the year ended December 31, 1998, was completed and made 
available for public inspection at th e Council Office  on November 5, 1997. A public headng 
was held on Dece mber 3, 1997, for suggestions and comments from taxpayers. The 
proposed budget was form ally adopted by the Council on December 17, 1997. The 1998 
budget, which included proposed expenditures and the mear~s of financing them for the 
general, special revenue, debt service and capital project funds, was published in the official 
journal tw enty-one (21) days pdor to the public hearing. 

All appropdations lapse at year end, and any encumbrance s outstanding at year end are 
included in the next year's budget with funds appropriated in that year to finance them. The 
budget is prepared on a modified accrual basis. Form al budgetary accounts are integrated 
into the accounting system during the year as a management control device, 

The Council exercises budgetary co ntrol at the functional level. W ithin functions, the 
Director of Finance has the authority to make amendments as nece ssary. W hen actual 
revenues within a fund are failing to meet estim ated annual budgeted revenues by five 
percent or more, a budget amendment to reflect such changes is adopted by the Council in 
an open meeting. Budgeted amounts included in the accompanying financial statements 
include the original adopted budget amounts and all subsequent amendments. 

F. ENCUM BRANCES 

The Parish Councit does not utilize encumbrance s for presentation of these financial 
statements. 
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Notes to the Financial Statem ents (Continued 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

G. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

For reporting purposes, cash and cash equivalents include interest bearing dem and 
deposits and certificates of deposit with a maturity of three months or less from the date of 
acquisition. Under state law, the St. James Parish Council may deposit funds within a fiscal 
agent bank organized under the laws of the State of Louisiana, the laws of any other state in 
the union, or the laws of the United States. Further, the Council may invest in time deposits 
or ce rtificates of deposit of state banks organized under Louisiana law and nafional banks 
having principal offices in Louisiana. 

H. INVESTMENTS 

State statutes authorize St. James Parish Council to invest in United States bonds, treasury 
notes and bills, or certificates or time deposits of state banks organized under Louisiana law 
and national banks having principal offices in Louisiana. In addition, local govern ments in 
Louisiana are authorized to invest in the Louisiana Asset Management Pool Inc. (LAMP), a 
non-profit corporation form ed by an initiative of the State Treasurer and organized under the 
laws of the State of Louisiana, which operates a local govem ment investm ent pool. 
investments are stated at co st. Market value is not materially different from its cost. 

SHORT-TERM INTERFUND RECEIV ABLES/PAYABLES 

budng th e co urse of operations, num erous transactions occur between individual funds for 
goods provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as due 
from other funds or due to other fu nds on the balance sheet. Short-term  interfund loans are 
classified as interfund loans receivable/payable. 

J. INVENTORY 

Inventory in the genera l fu nd consists of expendable supplies held for consumption. The 
inventory is valued at cost (first-in, first-out method), and the cost is recorded as an 
expenditure at the tim e individual inventory items are requisitioned by th e different 
departm ents. 

Inventories in the St. James Parish Gas and W ater Distribution System are stated at the 
lower of cost (weighted moving average) or market. Gas purchased in the system's lines, 
and the water produce d by the system are expensed when purchased or purified. 

Inventories of the St. James Youth Center consist of clothing and food supplies which are 
stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out method) or market and are recorded as expenses 
when consumed. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Inventories of the St. James Padsh Hospital consist of medical supplies and are stated at 
the lower of cost (first-in, first-out method) or market and are reco rded as expenses when 
consum ed. 

K. RESTRICTED ASSETS 

The St. James Parish Gas and W ater Distribution System Enterprise Fund has restdcted 
assets for debt retirement. The 1973 Series, 1989 Refunding Series and 1997 Refu nding 
Series Bond Resolutions established the following restricted funds: 

This fund was esta blished to provide for the payments of bond principal and interest. 
Deposits to the fund of l/6th of the next interest payment and 1112th of the next principal 
payment are required monthly. 

This fund was estabUshed for the payments of bond principal and interest if the Sinking Fund 
is not capable of meeting the payments. The bond ordinances require monthly deposits to 
the fu nd in an amount that will increase the total amount on deposit, within a pedod not 
exceeding five years, to a sum equal to the highest pdncipal &nd interest requirements in 
any succeeding fiscal year on the 1973 Sedes, 1989 Refunding Series and the 1997 
Refu nding Sedes revenue bonds. The highest principal and interest amount that will fall due 
is $362,975 occurring in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2000. 

This fund was esta blished to provide for extensions, additions, improvements, renewals and 
replacement of the gas and water distribution system. It may also be used for bond matudty 
payments and interest payments if the Sinking Fund and Reserve Fund are not ca pable of 
meeting the payments. The 1973 Series, th e 1989 Refunding Sedes and th e 1997 
Refunding Sedes revenue bonds require 5% of the gross revenue of the Distribution System 
co llected be deposited to the fund after the required deposits to the Sinking Fund and 
Reserve Fund have been made. 

L. FIXED ASSETS 

Fixed assets of governmenta l funds of the govem ment are reco rded as expenditures at the 
time purchased or co nstructed and the relaled assets are c~pitalized in the general fixed 
assets account group. All fixed assets are valued at co st or estimated histodca l cost if 
purchased or co nstructed. Donated fixed assets are recorded at th eir estimated fair value at 
th e date of donation. Assets in th e general fixed assets account group are not depreciated. 
Interest incurred dudng construction is not capitalized on general fixed assets. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Public domain (infrastructure) general fixed assets (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks and other 
assets that are immovable and of value only to the govemment) are not capitalized. 

The fixed assets used in the proprietary fund type operations are included on the balance 
sheet of th e fu nds net of accum ulated depreciation. Depreciation of all exhaustible fixed 
assets used by proprietary fund type operations are charged as an expense against 
operations. 

The St. James Parish Gas and W ater Distdbution System's plant, property, and equipment 
are stated at cost and are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following 
estimated useful ~ives: 

Utility plant, distdbution system and components 
Transportation equipment 
Office furn iture, fixtures and equipment 

5 - 50 years 
5 - 8 years 
3 - 15 years 

The St. James Youth Center's property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. 
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the following estimated usefu 
lives: 

Office furn iture, fixtures, and equipment 
Buildings 
Transportation equipment 

5 - 7 years 
31 years 
5 years 

The St. James Padsh Hospital's property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. 
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful 
lives: 

Office furn iture, fixtures, and equipment 
Buildings and im provements 

M. ANNUAL AND SICK LEAVE 

3 - 20 years 
10 - 40 years 

Council em ployees earn from 12 to 18 days of both annual and sick leave each year, 
depending upon length of service. Sick leave may be accumulated without limitation; 
however, annual leave may not be carried fo rward from one year to the next unless 
approved by the Padsh President. Upon retirement, unused aCCumulated sick leave from 
15 to 60 days depending on length of service, shall be paid to the employee at the 
employee's current rate of pay. Any unused annual leave is paid to the employee upon 
retirement or term ination. 
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

The cost of leave privileges, co mputed in accordance with the codification, is recognized as 
a current year expenditure in the general fund when leave is actually taken or when 
employees (or their heirs) are paid for accrued leave upon retirement or death, while the 
cost of leave pdvileges not requiring current resources is reco rded in the general long-term 
obligations account group. The enterpdse fu nds reflect the current co st of leave privileges in 
the operating expenses on Statement E. 

N. FUND EQUITY 

Contdbuted ca pital is recorded in proprieta ry funds that have received ca pital grants or 
co ntributions from developers, customers, or other funds when such resources are 
restricted for th e acquisition or construction of capital assets. Contributed ca pita l is not 
amortized based on the depreciation reco gnized on that portion of the assets acquired or 
constru cted from  such resources. 

Reserves represent those portions of fund equity not appropdable for expenditure or legally 
segregated for a specific fu ture use. 

O. SALES AND USE TAX 

On April 4, 1981, the voters of St. James Parish approved a one percent sales and use tax, 
which is ce llected by the St. James Parish School Board, and then remitted to the Parish 
Council. The proceeds of th e tax, after paying reasonable and necessary costs and 
expenses of collecting and administering the tax, are dedicated as follows: 

1. One-fourth is to provide ca re and assistance  to the elderly of the 
padsh and provide health service s to padsh residents, including the 
acquisition, operation, and maintenance of necessary vehicles; 

2. One-fourth is to provide solid waste management and disposal 
including the acquisition of land, plants, buildings, machinery, and 
nece ssary equipment; 

3. One-fourth is to pay the co st of providing recreational facilities, 
including the acquisition of land, buildings, machinery , and 
equipment; and 

32 



 

St. Jam es Parish Council 
Convent, Louisiana 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

4. One-fourth is to pay the general operation and maintenance costs of 
the parish, to acquire capital improvements for the parish, and to 
service bonds from time to time for the purpose of making ca pital 
improvements for the purposes listed above. 

P. MEMORANDUM TOTALS 

Total columns on the co mbined statements are ca ptioned "Memorandum Only" to indicate 
that they are presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in these columns do not 
present financial position, results of opera tions, or ca sh flows in conform ity with generally 
accepted accounting principles. Neither is such data comparable to a consolidation. 
Interfund eliminations have not been made in the aggregation of this data. 

Q. COMPARATIVE DATA/RECLASSIFICATIONS 

Comparative total data for the pdor year have been presented in selected sections of the 
accompanying financial statements in order to provide an understanding of the changes in 
the government's financial position and operations. Also, ce rtain amounts presented in the 
prior year data have been reclassified in order to be consistent with the current year's 
pre sentation. 

2. DEPOSITS AND INVESTM ENTS 

At Dece mber 31, 1998, the St. James Parish Council has deposits and ca rtiflcates of deposit (book balances) 
as follows: 

Cash 

Certificates Of deposits less than 90 days 

Restricted Assets 
Cash 
Certificates of deposit greater than 90 days 

Certificates of deposit greater than 90 days 

Pdmary 
Govern ment 

$1,838,594 

5,254,960 

7,093,554 

478,604 
150,000 

503,500 

$8,225,658 

St. James 
Parish Hospital 

St. James Parish 
Clerk of Court 

$1,004,728 $151,964 

1,004,728 

535,112 

687,076 
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 

2. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

These deposits, are stated at cost, which approximates market. Under state law, these deposits (or the 
resulting bank balances) must be secured by federal deposit insurance or the pledge of securities owned by 
the fiscal agent bank. The market value of the pledged securities plus the federa l deposit insurance  must at 
a~l times equal the amount on deposit with the fisca ~ agent. These securities are held in the name of the 
pledging fiscal agent bank in a holding or custodial bank that is mutually acceptable to both parties. At 
December 31, 1998, the primary government has $7,760,737 in deposits (collected bank balance s). These 
deposits are secured from risk by $400,000 of federal deposit insurance and $7,360,737 of pledged 
securities held by the custodial bank in the name of the fiscal agent bank (GASB Category 3). At June 30, 
1998, the St. James Clerk of Court has $688,083 in deposits (co llected bank balance s). These deposits are 
secured from risk by $400,000 of federal deposit insurance  and $1,608,763 of pledged securities held by the 
custodial bank in the name of the fisca l agent bank (GASB Category 3). 

Even though the pledged securities are considered uncollateralized (Category 3) under the provisions of 
GASB Statement 3, Louisiana Revised Statute 39:1229 imposes a statutory requirement on the custodial 
bank to advertise and sell the pledged secudties within 10 days of being notified by the Padsh Council that 
the fisca l agent has failed to pay deposited funds upon demand. 

St. James Parish Council has investment securities in the Louisiana Asset Management Poo r, Inc. (LAMP), a 
local govern ment investm ent pool. In accordance with GASB Codifica tion Section 150.165, the investment in 
LA MP as of December 31, 1998, is not categorized in the three dsk categories provided by GASB 
Codifica tion Section 150.164 beca use the investment is in the pool of funds and th erefore not evidenced by 
securities that exist in physica l or book entry form. LAMP is adminlstered by LA MP, Inc., a non-profit 
co rporation organized under the laws of the State of Louisiana, which was formed by an initiative of the State 
Treasurer in 1993. The corporation is governed by a board of directors consisting of the State Treasurer, 
representatives from various organizations of loca l government, the Govern ment Finance Office rs 
Association of Louisiana, and the Society of Louisiana Certified Public Accountants. Only local govem ments 
having contracted to participate in LAMP have an investment interest in its pool of assets. The primary 
objective of LAMP is to provide a safe environment for the place ment of public funds in short-term, high- 
quality investments. The LAMP portfolio includes only sec urities and other obligations in which I~cal 
governments in Louisiana are authorized to invest. Accordingly, LAMP investments are restricted to 
securities issued, guaranteed, or backed by the U.S. Treasury, the U.S. government, or one of its agencies, 
enterprises, or instrumentalities, as well as repurchase agreements collateralized by those secudties. The 
dollar weighted average portfolio matudty of LAMP assets is restricted to not more th an 90 days, and 
co nsists of no securities with a matudty in excess of 397 days. LAMP is designed to be highly liquid to give 
its participants immediate access to their account balances. 

Investments in LAMP at December 31, 1998. are as follows: 

Investment secudties 
Restricted assets 

Special Debt Capital 
General Revenue Service Project 
Fund Funds Funds Funds 

$715,255 $2,848,613 $566,871 $191,362 

Intern al Total 
Enterprise Service Pdmary 
Funds Funds Government 

$1,078,272 
379,066 

31,457,338 

$231,747 $5,632,120 
379,066 

36,011,186 
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continuedl 

2. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

St. James Padsh Hospital has investments in marketable equity securities whose use is limited under 
agreements with third party payors for funded depreciation. The summary of these investments as of 

March 3t, 1998, are as follows: 

Certificate of deposit maturing 04-09-98, interest rote 5.95% 
Certifica tes of deposit maturing 04-16-98, interest rates of 

5.00% to 5.50% 
Bond premiums and accrued interest 

$1,000,0g0 

503,150 
66,934 

.~ 570,084 

Certifica tes of deposit in excess of insured deposit limits were collateralized by U.S. Government securities 

and other Agency obligations 

3. EXPENDITURES -ACTUALAND BUDGET 

The following individua~ funds had 
Decem ber 31, 1998: 

actual expenditures over budgeted expenditures for the year ended 

Fun_ __ dd 

Special revenue funds: 
Road and Bridge 
Courthouse, Jail and Public Buildings 
Public Safety 
Area Agency on Aging - Helping Hands 
Head Start Program 
Senior Citizens Activities 
Total 

Capital Projects Funds: 
CDBG Road improvement 
Internal Service Funds: 
Group Hospitalization Claims Cleadng Fund 
Total 

BudRet 

$1,196,700 
940,100 
915,092 
2,200 

1,057,100 
.
30,000 

4,141,192 

52,30~ 

831.800 
~5t025,292 

$1,264,719 
1,079,853 
1,210,309 

2,836 
1,144,523 

_  
37,434 

4 ,739,674 

Unfavorable 
Vadance 

$ 68,019 
139,753 
295,217 

636 
87,423 
7,434. 

598,48;~ 

=  
59,387 7,087 

_
894,055 

_$_5,693,116 
62,255 

~ 7,B2~ 

In the future, the individual fund budgets will be amended whenever actual expenditures plus projected 
expenditures for the remainder of the year exceed budgeted amounts. 
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4. RECEIVABLES 

The following is a sum m ary of receivables as of Decem ber 31, 1998 

Taxes 
Other government agencies 
Federal 
State 
SchOOl Board 
Sheriff 
Other 

Accounts 
Less allowance  for 
doubtful accounts 

Accrued interest 
Other 
Total 

General 
Fund 

Special 
Revenue 
Funds 

Debt 
Se~'ice 
Fund..~s 

Capital Intamal 
Project Entaq~rise Service 
Funds Funds Fund._ _ _ss 

Component Units 
Clerk 

Hospital of Court 

$ 30,863 $ 69,908 $ 32,778 $ $ 4,316 $ $ 237,501 $ 

16,371 
32,960 
206,684 

1,477,010 

254,567 
34,339 
352,752 

4,693,297 

67,685 

58~073 67,677 
3t,621,961 $5570,225 

12,100 

206,575 

658,986 

(34,026) 
505 

7~427 
$843,777 

5. LEVIED TAXES 

The following is a summary of levied ad valorem taxes for the year 1998: 

Padshwide taxes: 
General Fund 
Libra ry 
Department of Human Resources 
Courthouse Jail and Public Buildings Maintenance 
Road and 13ddge 
Padshwide Dra inage 
Public Safety 
Enhanced 911 System Maintenance 
Consolidated General Obligation Bonds 
St. James Youth Center 

Dist[ict taxes: 
Consolidated Road Lighting District #3A 
Gra mercy Recreation District 
Fire Protection Distdct #2 
District V Recreation 

Discrete Component Unit: 
St. James Parish Hospital 

1,962,021 

(695,070) 

14,780 
$14,78
._ _ _ _ ~0 $1,504,452 

M illage Rate 
3.23 
3.00 
3.92 
5.00 
5.00 
1.96 
4.00 
1.25 
7.50 
1.00 

1.25 
5.43 

.74 
1.00 

4.75 
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5. LEVIED TAXES (Continued) 

The following are the principa! taxpayers of the Parish: 

Star Enterprise (Texaco, Inc.) 
Occidental Chemical Corporation 
IMC-Agdco Company (Agrico) 
Chevron U.S.A. Inc. 
IMC-Agrico Company (Freeport-McMoran) 
Kaiser N umir~um & Chemical Corporation 
Capline System 
Zen-Noh Grain Corporation 
Entergy Louisiana, Inc. 
LO CAP. Inc. 

6. REST~ CTED ASSETS 

Type of 
Business 

Petrochemica l 
Chemica l 
Chemica l 
Chemica l 
Chemica l 
Chemical 
Public Service 
Grain 
Public Service 
Public Serv ice 

1998 
Assessed 
Valuation 

$71,474,677 
11,514,738 
10,837,060 
9,584,148 
8,300,040 
8,013,480 
7,507,620 
7,466,102 
7,340,750 
5,486,360 

~147,524,975 

Percentage of 
TotalAssessed 

30.1% 
4.8% 
4.6% 
4.0% 
3.5% 
3.4% 
3.2% 
3.1% 
3.1% 
2.3%  
62.1% 

Restricted assets for debt retirement of the SL James Parish Gas and W ater Distribution System Enterprise 
fund as of June 30, 1998 (the co mponent unit's fisca l year end) consist (~f the following: 

M oney m arket accounts 
Certifica tes of deposits 
LAMP 
Total 

7. FIXED ASSETS 

The changes in general fixed assets for the Parish Council follow: 

Land 
Buildings 
Im provements other 
than buildings 

Machinery & equipment 
Library collection 
Total 

$ 478,604 
150,000 
379,066 

~1,007,670 

Balance Balance 
January 1, 1998 Additions Deletions Decem ber 31, 1998 

$ 1,100,371 
8.683.078 

2,836,211 
7,537,646 
1,129,588 

$21,286,894 
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$ 251,704 $ 
113.017 

98,086 
1,159,598 

90,918 
$1,713,323 

10,376 
212,974 
78,588 

~301,938 

$ 1,352,075 
8,796,095 

2,923,921 
8,484,270 
1,141,918 

~22,698,279 
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Notes to the Financial Statem ents (Continued 

7. FIXED ASSETS (Continued) 

Activity in the general fixed assets account group for the Clerk of Court for the year ended June 30, 1998, is 
as follows: 

Balance June 30, 1997 
Additions 
Deletions 
Balance June 30. 1998 

Furn iture, Fixtures, 
and Equipment 

$31,057 
12,384 

Autom obile 

$15.937 

Total 

$46,994 
12,384 

~,43,441 $15,93"7 $59,378 

A summary of the proprietary property, plant and equipment for the Parish Council for the year ending in 
1998 follows: 

Buildings 
Gas distribution system 
W ater distribution system 
Office furn iture, fixtures and equipment 
Transportation equipment 
Construction in progress 
Subtotal 
Less accum ulated depreciation 
Total 

$ 8,590,961 
1,923,413 
12,432,881 

536,467 
204,699 
5,542 

23,693,963 
8,418,917 

$15,275,046 

The following is a sum mary of the enterprise fund type fixed assets for the St. James Padsh Hospital at 
March 31. 1998: 

Land 
Building and improvements 
Equipment 
Subtotal 
Less acc umulated depreciation 
Total 

8. EMPLOYEE RETIREM ENT SYSTEMS AND PLANS 

$ 52,159 
3,466,199 
3,522,359 
7,040,717 
4,206.,770 
$2,833,947 

Substantially all employees of the St. James Padsh Council are members of the Parochtal Employees 
Retirement System of Louisiana (System), a cost shadng, multiple-employer, defined benefit pension plan 
adm inistered by a separate board of trustees. The System is com posed of two distinct plans, Plan A and 
Plan B, with separate assets and benefit provisions. All employees of the Parish Council are members of 
Plan A. 
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8. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS AND PLANS (Continued) 

All full-time, permanent employees working at least 28 hours per week who are paid wholly or in part from 
parish funds and most elected parish officials are eligible to participate in the System. Per Louisiana Revised 
Statute 11:164, padsh councilmen elected on or after January 1, 1997, are not eligible to participate in the 
System. Under Plan A, employees who retire at or after age 60 with at least 10 years of creditable service, at 
or after age 65 with at least 25 years of creditable service, or at any age with at least 30 years of creditable 
service  are entitled to a retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, equal to 3% of their final-average salary 
for each year of creditable service. However, for those employees who were members of the supplemental 
plan only prior to January 1, 1980, the benefit is equal to one percent of final average salary plus $24 for 
each year of supplemental-plan-only service earn ed prior to January 1, 1980. Final-average salary is the 
employee's average salary over the 36 consecutive or joined months that produce the highest average. 
Employees who terminate with at least the amount of creditable service stated above and do not withdraw 
their employee contributions may retire at the ages specified above and receive the benefit accrued to their 
date of term ination. The System also provides death and disability benefits. Benefits are established by 
state statute. 

The System issues an annual publicly available financial report that includes financial statem ents and 
required supplementary inform ation for the System. That report may be obtained by writing to the Parochial 
Employees' Retirement System, Post Office Box 14619, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70898-4619, or by calling 
(504) 928-1361. 

Funding Policy. Under Plan A, members are required by state statute to contribute 9.5 perce nt of their 
annual covered salary and the Padsh Council is required to contribute at. an actuadaUy determined rate. The 
current rate is 7.75 perce nt of annual covered payroll. Contributions to the System also include one-fourth of 
one perce nt (exce pt Odeans and East Baton Rouge Parishes) of the taxes shown to be collectible by the tax 
rolls of each padsh. These tax dollars are divided between Plan A and Plan B based proportionately on the 
salaries ofthe active mem bers of each plan. The contribution requirem ents of plan members and the Parish 
Council are established and may be amended by state statute. As provided by Louisiana Revised Statute 
11:103, the employer contributions are determined by actuadal valuation and are subject to change each 
year based on th e results of the valuation for the prior fisca l year. The Parish Council's contributions to the 
System under Plan A for the years ending Dece mber 31, 1998, 1997, and 1996, were $456,287, $433,950, 
and $397,050, respectively, equal to the required contdbutions for each year. 

Parochial Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana - Discretely Presented Comco nent Unit (St. Ja 

The HospitaT is a member of the Parochial Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana. All employees are 
members of Plan B. Under Plan B, employees who retire at or after age 62 with at least 10 years of 
creditable service or at or after age 55 with at least 30 years of creditable service are entitled to a retirement 
benefit, payable monthly for life, equal to 2 percent of their final-average salary in exce ss of $100 for each 
year of creditable service. Furtherm ore, employees with at least 10 years of creditable service, but less than 
30 years, may ta ke early retirement benefits commencing at or after age 60, with the basic benefit reduced 3 
perce nt for each year retirement precedes age 62. In any case, monthly retirement benefits paid under Plan 
B ca nnot exceed the lesser of 100 percent of final-average salary or $70 multiplied by total years or 
creditable serv ice . 
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 

8. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS AND PLANS (Continued) 

Funding Policy. Under Plan B, members are require d by state statute to contribute 2.0 percent of their 
annual covered salary in excess of $1,200 and the Hospital is required to contribute at an actuadally 
determined rate. The current rate is 2.5 percent of annual covered payroll. The Hospital's co ntributions to 
the System under Plan B for the years ended March 31, 1998, 1997, and 1996, were $62,676, $39,134, and 
$26,090, respectively. All amounts expensed  have been funded  in the contributory plan. 

The St James Parish Clerk of Court contributes to the Clerk of Court Retirement and Relief Fund 
(Retirement System), a co st-sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the 
Clerk of Court Retirement and Relief Fund, a public co rporation created in accordance  with the provisions of 
Louisiana Revised Statute 11:1501 - 1540 to provide re tire ment, disability and survivor benefits to members 
throughout the State of Louisiana. The Clerk of Court Retire ment and Relief Fund issues a publicly available 
financial report th at includes financial statements and required supplementary inform ation. That report m ay 
be obtained  by writing to the Clerk of Court Retirement and Relief Fund, 11745 Bricksome Ave., Suite B-l, 
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70816. 

Funding Policy. Plan members are required to co ntribute 8.25% of th eir annual covered salary and the 
St. James Parish Clerk of Court is required to co ntribute at an actuarially

.
determ ined rate. The current rate is 

11.5% of annual co vered payroll. The co ntribution requirements of plan members and the St. James Parish 
Clerk of Court are established and may be amended by the Clerk of Court Retirem ent and Relief Fund. The 
St. James Padsh Clerk of Court's contributions to the Retirement System for th e years ended June 30, 1998, 
1997, and 1996, were $27,163, $24,861, and $23,961, respectively. 

9. COM PENSATED ABSENCES 

At December 31, 1998, the em ployees of the St. James Parish Council have accumulated  and vested 
$382,224 of employee leave benefits, which was co mputed in accordance with GASB Codification Section 
C60. This amount has been reco rded as a long-term  obligation (co mpensated absence s payable) in the 
general long:term obligations account group. The leave liability for employees of the St James Parish Gas 
and W ater Distribution System as of June 30, 1998, was $165,260. The leave liability for employees of the 
St. James Youth Center as of Dece mber 31, 1998, was $95,552. The leave liability for the employees of the 
St. James Parish Hospital as of March 31, 1998, was $148,101. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued 

10. POSTRETIREMENT HEALTH CARE AND LIFE INSURANCE BENEFITS 

The St. James Parish Council does not provide health care or life insurance benefits to employees who 
retired prior to July 1, 1982. Employees who retired after July 1, 1982, but prior to July 1, 1991, and their 
dependents are eligible for health core benefits. Employees who retire on or after July 1, 1991, and their 
dependents shall be eligible for health ca re benefits provided the following conditions are met: 

1. a. The Employee and his eligible dependents must have been continuously 
covered under this Plan for at least twelve (12) months prior to retirement, and 

b. The Employee has ten (10) years of creditable service and is eligible and 
receiving benefits under th e Parochial Employees Retirement System of 
Louisiana (see note 8). 

2. Elected officials and their eligible dependents are eligible for benefits, provided the 
elected official has twelve (12) years co ntinuous service and is at least age fifty (50). 

The Parish Council requires the retired em ployees to fund fifty percent of th e cost of the premiums. Premium 
payments are required to be paid monthly by the retirees. For the year December 31, 1998, the Parish 
Council and the retired employees each contributed $21,635 toward the premium. However, the Plan 
reserves the right to amend or reduce coverage. There are 36 employees currently eligible to receive 
health ca re benefits or life insurance benefits. 

11. DEFERRED COM PENSATION PLAN 

The St. James Parish Council offers its employees a deferred co mpensation plan created in accordance with 
Intern al Revenue Code Section 457. The plan, available to all Padsh employees, perm its th em to defer a 
portion of their salary until future years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until 
term ination, retirement, or unforeseeable emergency. 

All amounts of compensation deferred under the plan, all property and rights purchased with those amounts, 
and all inco me attributable to those amounts, property, or rights are (until paid or made available to the 
employee or other beneficiary) solely the property and rights of the Parish (without be ing restricted to the 
provisions of benefits under the plan), subject only to the claims of the Padsh's general creditors. Participants' 
rights under the plan are equal to those of general creditors of the Parish in an amount equal to the fair 
market value of the deferred account for each participant. 

The Parish's legal counsel believes th at th e Parish has no liability for losses under the plan, but does have 
the duty of due care that would be required of an ordinary prudent investor. ]'he Parish believes that it is 
unlikely that it will use the assets to satisfy the claims of general creditors in the future. 

Investments are managed by PEBSCO Securities Corp. The choice of the investments option(s) is made by 
the participant. At December 31, 1998, the assets in the plan were valued at $1,606,440. 
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12. FUND DEFICITS 

The following fund had a deficit in unreserved fund balance at December 31, 1998 

Fund 

St. James Transit System 

Deficit Am ount 

$1,134 

The Council will attempt to elim inate this deficit in the future by reducing expenditures 

13. OPERATING LEASES 

The St. James Parish Council has several operating leases as of Dece mber 31, 1998. The minimum annual 
commitments under nonce ncelable operating leases and/or agreements are as follows: 

Year 
1999 
2000 
2001 
2002 
2003 
Thereafter 
Total 

Land. 

$ 13,675 
13,675 
13,675 
13,675 
13,675 
18,82.0 
$87,195 

The St. James Parish Hospita l has entered into an operating lease for land and buildings it occupies in 
LaPlace , Louisiana, that expired July 1998. Rental expense reflected in Loss on Psychiatric Hospital 
Operations amounted to $240,000, for the year ended March 31, 1998. There are no future minimum annual 
rentals associated with this lease. 

The St. James Parish Clerk of Court entered into an annual re ntal agreement with Xerox for two co piers for 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998. Rental payments totaling $15,168 are included in the General Fund's 
material and supplies expenditures. 

14. CAPITAL LEASES 

The Parish Council has entered into ce rtain ca pital leases for vadous equipment. Capita lized leased 
equipment included in machinery and equipment in the General Fixed Assets Account Group in the 
accompanying balance sheet at December 31, 1998, amounted to $1,636,200. 

The St. James Youth Center entered into a capital lease for ca mera and video equipment. Capitalized 
leased ca mera and video equipment included in equipment in the fixed assets for the enterprise fund in the 
acco mpanying balance sheet at December 31, 1998, amounted to $16,495 with depreciation expense of 
$2,356 for the year ended Dece mber 31, 1998. 

The following is a schedule of fu ture m inim um lease payments under the above described capital leases and 
the present value of the m inimum lease payments as of Dece mber 31, 1998: 
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14. CAPITAL LEASES (Continued) 

Fiscal Year Endin~l 

1999 
2000 
2001 
2002 
2003 
Thereafter 

Total minim um lease payments 
Less: amount representing interest 
Present value of minimum lease payments 

15. DEFERRED REVENUES 

$106,218 
104,443 
64,404 
51,215 
51,215 
256,073 
633,568 
137,481. 
~,96,087 

Enterprise Fund 

$4,097 
3,415 

7,512 
603 

~6,909 

During the year ended June 30, 1995, th e St. James Parish Gas & W ater Distribution System negotiated with 
Eagle Asphalt Products, to construct a 6-inch high pressure gas line from th e IMC-Agdco metering station to 
Eagle Asphalt Products, located on th e westbank along Highway 18. In order to finance the co nstruction of 
the gas line, Eagle Asphalt Products advanced the System $150,000 to begin construction. Starting August, 
1995, Eagle Asphalt began using the gas line and receives a monthly credit of $5,000 on its gas utility bill for 
a period of thirty months. If th e credit is not utilized in the current m onth , it is not ca rried forward. As of 
June 30, 1998, the deferred revenue credit has been fully utilized. 

16. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS 

The following is a summary of liabilities reported in the general long-term obligations account group for the 
Parish Council for the year ended Decem ber 31, 1998: 

Capital Compensated 
Leases Absences Notes 

General 
Obligation 

. Bonds 

Long-term obligations payable 
at Januaw 1, 1998 $236,915 $363,620 $189,098 $13,190,000 

Additions 

Redu~ions 

Long-term obligations payable 
at December 31. 1998 

481,635 

{222,463) 

18,604 21,499 

(92,037) 

2,136,000 

O,020,000) 

$13,979,633 

2,657,738 

0,334,500 

Since the liability for compensated absences is inventoried at the end of each fisca l year, the amount of 
additions and deductions ca nnot be determined. Therefore, the net increase/decrease is reflected in the 
previous summary. 
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16. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued) 

General obligation bonds, revenue bonds and certificates of indebtedness are compdsed of the following 
individual issues: 

$125,000 - 1976 Public Improvement Bonds for the purpose of constructing recreational 
facilities. The remaining principal is due in annual installments of $10,000 to $11,000 
through June 1, 2001, with interest at 5 percent. Debt retirement payments are made 
from the Gramercy Recreation Distdct Debt Service Fund. $ 31,000 

$1,800,000 - 1988 General Obligation Bonds for the purpose of constructing and 
improving public roads. On January 5, 1994, $1,220,000 of remaining principal was 
defeased. $410,000 of the principal was not defeased. The remaining pdncipe l of 
$85,000 is due March 1, 1999, with interest at 7.0 percent. Debt retirement payments 
are made from the Consolidated General Obligation Bonds Debt Service  Fund. 85,000 

$500,000 - 1988 Public Improvement Bonds, Series ST-1988 for the purpose of 
co nstructing recreational facilities. On May 19, 1998, $335,000 of remaining principal 
was defeased, $45,000 of the principal was not defaased. The remaining principal of 
$25,000 is due November 1, 1999, with interest at 7.2 pe rcent. Debt retirement 
payments are made from the Public Improvement Bonds, Sedes ST-1988 Debt Service  
Fund. 25,000 

$1,775,000 - 1998 General Obligation Refunding Bonds were used to defease a 1990 
General Obligation Refunding Bond issue. The odginal purpose of th e bonds was for 
constructing and improving public roads, Th e remaining principal is due in annual 
installments of $400,000 to $490,000 through Apdl 1, 2002, with interest from 4.0 to 4.3 
perce nt. Debt retirement payments are made from the Consolidated General Obligation 
Bonds Debt Service  Fund. 1,775,000 

$9,455,000 - 1993 General Obligation Bonds for the purpose of retiring a capital lease 
agreement with St. James Correctional Facilities Corp . and to purchase/improve the 
St. James Juvenile Detention Facility. The principal is due in annual installments of 
$375,000 to $775,000 through Apdl 1, 2013, with interest from 3.7 to 5.00 perce nt. Debt 
retirement payments are made from the Consolidated General Obligation Bonds Debt 
Service  Fund. 8,170,000 

$2,400,000 - 1994 General Obligation Refunding Bonds for the purpose of refunding a 
1981 General Obligation Bond issue; a 1985, Sedes A, Genera l Obligation Bond issue; 
a 1985, Series B, General Obligation Bond issue; and a 1988 Generel Obligation Bond 
issue. The odginal purpose of the bonds was for constructing and improving 
public roads; for constructing, acquiring, and improving libraries; and for constructing 
acq uiring, extending, and improving parish jail facilities. The principal is due in annual 
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16. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued) 

General obliaation bonds (continued 

installments of $90,000 to $285,000 through March 1, 2008, with interest from 4.1 to 
5.2 percent. Debt retirement payments are made from the Consolidated General 
Obligation Bonds Debt Service Fund. 1,860,000 

$361,000 - 1998 Public Improvement Bonds, Series ST-1998 were used to defease a 
1988 Public Im provement Bond issue. The odginal purpose of the bonds was for the 
purpose of constructing recreational facilities. The remaining pdncipal is due in annual 
installments of $5,000 to $48,000 through November 1, 2008, with interest at 4.95 
percent. Debt retirement payments are made fi'om the Public Improvement Bonds, 
Series ST-1988 Debt Service Fund. 

Total general obligation bonds 

Revenue Bonds 

Gas and W ater Distribution System 

360,000 

12,306,000 

$3,000,000 - 1973 Serial bonds due in annual installments of $165,000 to $220,000 
through December 2003, at 6 percent interest. 1,150,000 

$1,091,838 - 1969 Refunding Serial bonds in annual installment of $50,144 at 
Decem ber 1998, at 11 percent interest. 50,144 

$900,000 - 1997 Refunding Serial Bonds due in annual installments of $10,000 to 
$140,000 through December, 2007, at 7.5 percent interest. 

Less deferred amount on refunding 

Total revenue bonds 

St. James Youth Center 

$700,000 - Series 1992, for the purpose of acquiring, constructing, equipping, 
operating, and maintaining, and managing a juvenile detention center. The remaining 
principal is due in annual installments of $75,000 to $95,000 through March 1, 2002, 
with interest at 6.5 percent. Debt retirement payments are made from the levy and 
co llection of a special tax of 1 mill. 

Total bonded debt 

45 

900,000 
2,t00,144 

107,845 

1,992,299 

340 000 

$14,638,299 
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t6. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued) 

The annual requirements to amortize all bonded debt outstanding at December 31, 1998, including interest of 
$4,750,798 and a deferred amount on refunding of $107,845 are as follows: 

Fiscal year. 
1999 
2000 
2001 
2002 
2003 
Thereafter 
Total 

$ 2,054,202 
2,023,368 
2,046,482 
2,053,187 
1,459,377 
9,860,326 

~;19,496,942 

At December 31, 1998, general obligation bonds in the amount of $12,306,000 are secured by an annual ad 
valorem tax levy and irrevoca ble dedica tion of pledged sales tax revenues. In accordance with Louisiana 
Revised Statute 39:562, the Council is legally restricted from incurring long-term bonded debt in excess of 
19 per ce nt of th e assessed value of taxable property in th e parish. At Dece m ber 31, 1998, the statutory limit 
is $4 5,121,453. 

On January 22, 1998, St. James Padsh Council issued $1,775,000 in General Obligation Bonds with an 
interest rate of 4.0% to 4.3% to advance  refund $1,760,000 of outstanding 1990 Sedes General Obligation 
Refunding Bonds with an interest rate of 6.9% to 7.1%. The net proceeds of $1,739,972 (after payment of 
$35,028 in underwriting fees and other issuance  costs) plus an additiohal $64,524 of 1990 Series General 
Obligation Refunding sinking fund monies were used to purchase U.S. govern ment securities. Those 
securities were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service  
payments on the 1990 Series General Obligation Refunding Bonds. As a result, $1,760,000 of the 1990 
Series General Obligation Refunding Bonds are considered to be defeased and the liability for these bonds 
has been removed from the general long-term  debt account group. $350,000 of the 1990 Series General 
Obligation Refu nding Bonds was not refu nded and was paid during the year ended Dece mber 31, 1998. 

On May 19,1998, St. James Padsh Council issued $361,000 in Public Improvement Bonds with an interest 
rate of 4.95% to advance  refund $335,000 of outstanding Public Improvement Bonds, Series ST-1988 with 
an interest rate of 7.3% to 7.8%. The net proceeds of $351,290 (after payment of $9,710 in issuance costs) 
plus an additional $3,748 of Public Improvement Bonds, Series ST-1988 sinking fund and reserve fund 
monies were used to purchase U.S. government securities. Those securities were deposited in an 
irrevoca ble trust with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service  payments on the Public 
Improvement Bonds, Series ST-1988. As a result, $335,000 of the Public Improvement Bonds, Series ST- 
1988 are co nsidered to be defeased and the liability for these bonds has been removed from the general 
long-term debt acco unt group. $4 5,000 of the Public Improvement Bonds, Series ST-1988 was not refunded 
and $25,000 remains outstanding as of December 31, 1998. 

The St. James Parish Council advance  refunded the 1990 Series General Obligation Refunding Bonds and 
the Public Improvement Bonds, Series ST-1988 to reduce its total debt service  payments over the next 11 
years by $125,825 and to obtain an eco nomic gain (difference between the present values of the debt 
service payments on the old and new debt) of $107,192. 
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16. LO NG - 

On October 31, 1997, the Parish of St. James, State of Louisiana, issued $900,000 in Revenue Refunding 
Bonds with an interest rate of 7.5 percent to advance refund $835,263 of outstanding W ater and Gas Utility 
Revenue Refunding Bonds, dated April 6, 1989, with an interest rate of 11 percent. The net proceeds of 
$681,184 (after payment of $18,816 in issuance costs) plus an additional $38,283 of 1989 Refunding Series 
sinking fund monies, $32,512 of 1989 Refunding Series reserve fund monies, and $1,260 of the System's 
funds were used to purchase U.S. govern ment securities. Those securities were deposited in an irrevocable 
trust with an escrow agent to provide for future debt service  payments which mature December 1, 1999, 
through Decem ber 1, 2007, inclusive of the 1989 Sedes Refu nding Bonds. As a result, the 1989 Series 
Revenue Refunding bonds consisting of the principal installments which mature Dece mber 1, 1999. through 
December 1, 2007, inclusive are co nsidered to be defaased and the liability for those bonds has been 
removed from long-term debt on the balance  sheet. 

The advance  refu nding resulted in a difference between th e reacquisition price and th e net carrying amount 
of the old debt of $117,976. The difference , reported in the accompanying financial statements as a 
deduction from bo nds payable, is being charged to operations th rough the year 2007 using th e effective- 
interest method. The Distribution System co mpleted the advance  refu nding to reduce its total debt service  
payments over the next ten years by $87,858 and to obtain an eco nomic gain (difference betw een the 
present values of the old and new debt service  payments) of $50,302. 

In prior years, the Council defeased ce rtain other general obligation bonds by placing the proce eds of new 
bonds with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service  payments on the old bonds, Accordingly, 
the trust account assets and the liability for the defeased bonds are n~t included in the CounciL's financial 
statements. On Dece mber 31, 1998, $1,220,000 of bonds outstanding are considered defeased, in addition 
to the $1,760,000 of general obligation bonds, $335,000 of public improvement bonds, and $835,263 
revenue refunding bonds defeased in th e current year ending December 31, 1998. 

Conduit Debt 

The general long-term obligations account group does not include any of th e Pollution Control Revenue 
Bonds or Industrial Revenue Bonds issued by the Industrial Distdct of St. James Parish. Obligations of the 
industrial districts are payable solely from the income and revenues derived from the industrial districts. 
These bondsdo not constitute a debt or pledge of the faith and credit of the padsh, and accordingly have not 
been reported in the acco mpanying financial statements. 

As of Dece mber 31, 1998, there were seven sedes of Pollution Control Revenue Bonds or Industrial 
Revenue Bonds outstanding. The aggregate principal amount payable for the two series issued after 
January 1, 1996 was $27.5 million. The aggregate principal amount payabfa for the five series issued prior to 
January 1, 1996, could not be determined; however, the original issue amounts totaled $299.4 million. 
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16. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued) 

The SL James Parish Hospital has long-term debt that consists of the following: 

Installment obligation incurred to purchase EEG equipment requiring monthly 
payments including interest of $520 through September 2000 $ 12,703 

Installment obligation incurred to purchase nuclear equipment requiring 
monthly payments including interest of $2,565 through September 2002 119,734 

Insta llment obligation incurred to purchase mammogram equipment requidng 
monthly payments Including interest of $1,152 through August 2002 

Less current matudties 

The following table reflects the maturity schedule of these obligations. 

1999 
2000 
2001 
2002 
2003 

17. CRIMINAL COURT FUND 

52,567 

185,004 

38~742 

~146,262 

$ 38,742 
41,802 
41,980 
41,717 
20,763 

Louisiana Revised Statute 15:571.11 requires that one-half of any balance remaining in the cdminal court 
fund at year end be transferred to the parish general fund. The following details the amount due at 
December 31. 1998: 

Balance due to general fu nd at December 31, 1997 
Am ount needed from general fu nd to eliminate deficit balance for 1998 
Remitted dudng 1998 
Balance due from general fund at Dece mber 31, 1998 

$ 274 
(6,8{}8) 
(274) 

$(6,888) 
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18. )NTERFUND LOANS RECEIVABLE/PAYABLE 

Interfund loans receivable/payable, for the year ended December 31, 1998, are as follows: 

General fund 
Special revenue funds: 
Summer Child Care Program 

Debt service funds: 
Consolidated General Obligation Bonds 

Capital projects funds: 
Sewer Construction 
Total 

19. DUE FROM/TO OTHER FUNDS 

Interfund Loans 
Receivable 

$ 1,300 

144,500 
$145,800 

nterfund Loans 
Payable. . 

1,300 

144,500 

For the year ended Dece m ber 31, 1998, the individual due from/to other fu nds balances are as follows: 

Genera l Fund 
Special Revenue Funds: 
Cdm inal Court 
Solid W aste Disposal 
Parks & Recreation 
Eldedy & Emergency Medical Services 
AAA Discre tionary 

Add: St. James Parish Gas & W ater Distribution 
System (different year end - 6-30-98) 
St. James Padsh Clerk of Court (different 
year end - 6-30-98) 

Balance  per financial statem ent 

20. SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

Due from 
Other Funds 

$ 26 

6,888 
322,346 
17,774 
17,774 

747 
365.555 

150 
$365,705 

Due to 
Other Funds 

$ 60,957 

26 

60,983 

212,146 

5,150 
$278,279 

The Padsh maintains two enterprise funds which provide gas and water services, and juvenile rehabilitation 
service s. The St. James Parish Gas and W ater Distribution System is reported for the year ended June 30, 
1998. The St. James Youth Center is reported for the year ended December 31, 1998. In accordance  with 
GASB Codification Section 2500, segment information for the enterprise fu nds follows: 
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20. SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS (Continued) 

For the ApPlicable Year Ended in 1998 

Operating revenues, exclusive of ad valorem taxes 
Ad valorem tax es 
Operating expenses, exclusive of depreciation 
Depreciation and am ortization 
Operating income 

Nonoperating (expenses) revenues 
Net income (loss) 

Total assets 

Total equity 

Outstanding revenue bonds or certificates of indebtedness 

Net working capital 

Capital asset additions 

Capital asset deletions 

2t. CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL 

St. James Parish 
Gas & W ater 

Distribution System 

2,655,320 

(2,235,945) 
(384,778) 
34,597 
(87,891) 

.$ (53,294) 

St. James 
Youth Center 

$ 2,553,832 
214,407 

(2,367,448) 
(281,499) 
119,292 
201,069 

$ 320,361 

Contributed capital of the St. James Parish Gas and W ater Distribution System Enterprise Fund totaling 
$4,866,345 at June 30, 1998, represents co ntributions from the St. James Parish Council and contractors 
and custom ers for the construction of gas and water m ains. The co ntributed ca pital is not being amortized 
based on the amount of depreciation recognized on the assets acquired or constructed with the co ntributed 
ca pital. The following co ntributions were received dudng 1998: 

Balance, July 1, 1997 
Contributions from co ntra ctors and customers 
St. James Padsh Council 
State of Louisiana Office of Rural Development 
Balance, June 30, 1998 

$4,627,113 
123,364 
15,868 
100,000 

,$4,866,345 

Contributed ca pital of the St. James Parish Youth Center totaling $7,922,888 at December 31, 1998, 
represents co ntributions from the St. James Parish Council and St. James Correctional Facilities Corporation 
for the purchase of the juvenile detention center. The co ntributed capital is not being amortized based on the 
amount of depreciation recognized on the assets acquired with the contributed capital. 
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22. LITIGATION AND CLAIMS 

The St. James Parish Council has been sued for approximately $21,000,000 for breach of contract for the 
potential sale of certain land. The Padsh's insura nce may not cover this suit. The suit is still in the discovery 
stages, and the Parish and its legal counsel have been unable to determine the amount of liability, if any. 
The Parish Council is also a defendant in various other lawsuits. In the opinion of legal counsel, these other 
claims should not involve a substantial liability to the Council. 

23. FEDERALLY ASSISTED PROGRA MS 

The Council participates in a number of federally assisted progra ms. These pro gra ms are audited in 
accordance with the Govern ment Auditinq Standards. Audits of prior years have not resulted in any 
disallowed costs; however, grantor agencies may provide for further examinations. Based on prior 
experience, the co uncil's management believes that further examinations would not result in any material 
disallowed co sts. 

24. RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Council is exposed to various Asks of loss related to employee heaTth and medical claims for the 
employees of the St. James Padsh Council. The Council established a Group Hospitalization Claims 
Clearing Fund (an internal service fund) to account for and finance  its uninsured risks of loss. Under the 
program, the Group Hospitalization Claims Clearing Fund provides coverage for up to a maximum of $45,000 
for each employee's health claims. The Council purchases insurance for claims in excess of co verage 
provided by the Fund. 

All funds of the Council participate in th e program and make payments to the Gro up Hospita lization Claim s 
Clearing Fund based on estimates of th e amounts needed to pay prior-and current-year claim s and to 
establish a reserve for catastrophic losses. That reserve was $1,009,758 at December 31, 1998, and is 
reported as a designation in the fu nd balance of the Gro up Hospita lization Claims Cleadng Fund. The claims 
liability of $220,000 reported in the Fund at December 31, 1998, is based on the requirements of 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 10, which requires that a liability for claims be 
re po rted if information prior to the issuance of the financial statements indicates that it is pro bable that a 
liability has been incurred at the date of the financial statements and the amount of the loss can be 
re asonably estimated. Changes in the Fund's claims liability amount during 1998 were : 

Beainnin{~-of-Year Liability 

$220,000 

Current-Year Claims 

$724,623 

Claim  Paym ents 

$724,623 

Balance at Year-End 

$220,000 

The St. James Parish Hospital is exposed to various Asks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and 
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The Hospital is a 
member of two separate trust funds established by the Louisiana Hospital Association that enco mpasses self 
insurance of (1) Hospital professional liability and co mprehensive general liability, and (2) Statutory workers' 
compensation. The Hospital carries co mmercial insurance for all other risk of loss. The trust funds for 
professional liability/comprehensive general liability and statutory workers compensation are pooling 
arrangements whereby there is a sharing of Asks among the participants of the trust fu nds. The Hospital 
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St. Jam es Parish Council 
Convent, Louisiana 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Concluded) 

24. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 

reports its premiums as insurance expenditures and expenses these premiums over the pro rata periods 
involved. 

25. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 

The St. James Parish Hospital ceased operating its offsite psychiatric units in February 1998. The financial 
statements for 1997 were restated to disclose the results of operations of the disposed segment as a 
separate component of income. The estimated loss from this disposal incurred after March 3t, 1998, is 
provided in the financial statements for th e year ended March 31, 1998. The Hospital disposed of its North 
Louisiana psychiatric units and home office  in 1996. 
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G ENERA L FUN D 

The general fund is the principle fund of the Parish and is used to account for resources traditionally 
associated w ith governm ent w hich are not required legally or by sound financial m anagem ent to be 
accounted for in another fund. 



 

St. Jam es Parish Council 
Convent, Louisiana 

General Fund 
Com parative Balance Sheet 

Decem ber 31, 1999 and 1997 

Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 

Investm ents 

Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles 
Due from other funds 
Interfund loan receivable 
Inventory 
Total assets 

Liabilities and fund balance 
Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Payroll deductions and w ithholdings payable 
Due to other funds 
Interfund payables 
Other liabilities 
Total liabilities 

Fund balance: 
Unreserved 

Total liabilities and fund balance 

Schedule 1 
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Totals 
1998 

$1,518,786 
715,255 

1,821,961 

26 
1,300 

27,718 
$4,085,046 

$ 244,953 
57,104 

60,957 

3,602 
366,616 

3,718,430 
$4,085,046 

1997 

$ 936,061 
869,573 

2,509,747 

295 

31,193 
$4,346,889 

$ 371,288 
57,067 
11,498 

530,000 
119,599 

1,089,452 

3,257,437 
$4,346,889 



 

St. James Parish Council 
Convent, Louisiana 

General Fund 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Change~ in Fund 9aTance 

Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual 
For the year ended December 31, 199B 

W ith Comparative Actual Totals for the year ended December 31, 1997 

Revenues: 
Taxes: 
A d Valorer/I 
Voluntary paym ents in lieu of taxes 
Sales and use 
Alcoholic beverages (beer) 

Licenses and perm its 
Intergovernm ental: 
Federal 
State 
Local 

Interest 
In-kind contributions 
M iscellaneous 

Total revenues 

199~ 

$1,535,500 
585,900 

1,233,900 
18,000 

322,500 

151,700 
434,400 
104,400 
146,100 
2,600 

108,100 
4,843,100 

Actual 

1,533,020 
562,582 

1,222,428 
19,108 

332,410 

152,550 
434,370 
102,362 
141,198 
2,500 

105,832 
4,608,360 

Expenditures: 
Current: 
General governm ent: 
Financial administration 1,643,800 1,643,879 
Leg(slative 222,1 O0 216,8"40 
Judicial 143,700 153,902 
Executive 256,100 255,629 
Elections 32,800 30,967 
Other-unclassified 108,400 100,979 

Public safety 311,300 423,972 
Public housing 2,400 1,840 
Health and w elfare 195,900 194,089 
Economic development and assistance 464,700 476,458 

Capital outlay 307,900 246,612 
In-kind expenses 2,500 2,500 
Total expenditures 3,691,600 3,747,667 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Operating transfers in 
Proceeds from capital leases 
Operating transfers out 
Total other financing sources (uses 

vanance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable 

$ (2,480) 
(23,318) 
(11,472) 
1,108 
9,910 

850 
(30) 

(2,038) 
(4,902) 
(100) 

(2,266) 
(34,740~" 

(79) 
5,260 

(10,202} 
471 

1,833 
7,421 

(112,672) 
56O 

1,811 
(11,758) 
61,288 

1997 

Actua 

1,530,192 
585,913 

1,184,068 
18,016 

361,559 

169,647 
671,497 
99,857 
115,915 
2,568 

374,010 
5,103,242 

1,625,705 
224,607 
150,276 
221,937 
33,125 
113,115 
328,578 

1,800 
197,619 
520,153 
57,375 
2,569 

3,475,858 

951,500 860,693 (90,807) 1,626,384 

12,500 
44,900 

(563,300) 
(505,900) 

3,395 
94,856 

(497,951) 
(399,700) 

(9,105) 
49,956 
65,349 
106,204- 

70,300 

(445,483) 
(375,183) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
and other financing sources over (under) 
expenditures and other financing uses 445,600 460,993 15,393 1,251,201 

Fund balance, beginning of year 
Fund balance, end of year 

3,257,437 3,257,437 - 2,006,236 
$3,703,037 $3,718,430 $ 15,393" $3~257,437 

Schedule 2 
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SPECIA L REV EN U E FU N DS 

Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues derived from taxes or other dedicated 
revenue sources. They are usually required by statute, charter provision, or local ordinance to finance 
particular functions or activities of governm ent. The parish m aintains the follow ing special revenue 
funds: 

ROA D AND BRIDGE M A INTENA NCE FUND 

The Road and Bridge M aintenance Fund accounts for the construction of new roads and bridges and 
the maintenance of existing roads and roadside areas. Major means of financing is provided by ad 
valorem taxes, state revenue sharing, the State of Louisiana Parish Transportation Fund, and the 
Parish Royalty Fund. Use of these funds is restricted by Louisiana Revised Statute 43:753. 

COURTHOUSE, JAIL AND PUBLIC BUILDINGS M AINTENANCE FUND 

The Courthouse, Jail and Public Buildings M aintenance Fund accounts for the operation and 
m aintenance of the public buildings in the parish. Financing is provided by ad valorem taxes, and 
state revenue sharing. 

PA RISHW lDE DRA INA GE M AINTENANCE FUND 

The Parishw ide Drainage M aintenance Fund accounts for the operations and m aintenance of all parish 

drainage projects. Major means of financing is provided by ad valorem taxes and state revenue 
sharing. 

FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT NO . 2 M AINTENANCE FUND 

The Fire Protection District No. 2 M aintenance Fund accounts for the operation, m aintenance and/or 
construction of the w ater distribution system w ithin the district. Financing is provided by ad valorem 
taxes. 

SOLID W A STE DISPO SAL FUND 

The Solid W aste Disposal Fund accounts for the operation of solid w aste m anagem ent and disposaT. 
Financing is provided by one quarter of one per cent sales tax im posed parishw ide and user fees 
charged to the parish residents. 

ELDERLY A ND EM ERG ENCY M EDICAL SERV ICES FUND 

The Elderly and Em ergency M edical Services Fund accounts for the cost of providing care and 
assistance to the elderly persons of the parish and the cost of providing health services to the 
residents of the parish. Financing is provided by one quarter of one per cent sales tax im posed 
parishw ide and transfers from other funds. 

PARKS AND RECREATION FUND 

The Parks and Recreation Fund accounts for the cost of providing recreational facilities throughout the 
parish. Financing is provided by one quarter of one per cent sales tax im posed padshw ide and ad 
valorem taxes. 

GRAM ERCY RECREATION DISTRICT FUND 
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The Gram ercy Recreation District Fund accounts for the costs incurred by the district for providing 
recreational facilities w ithin the corporate lim its of the Tow n of Gram ercy. Financing is provided by ad 
valorem taxes, state revenue sharing end self-generated revenues. 

PARISH LIBRARY FUND 

The Parish Library Fund accounts for the operation and m aintenance of the St. Jam es Parish Library  
Financing is provided by ad valorem taxes, federal grants and state revenue sharing funds. 

CONSO LIDATED ROAD LIGHTING DISTRICT NO . 3A 

The Consolidated Road Lighting District No. 3A Fund accounts for the operations and m aintenance of 
street lights. Financing is provided by ad valorem taxes, voluntary  paym ents in lieu of taxes and state 
revenue sharing funds. 

ST. JA M ES TRANSIT SYSTEM FUND 

The St. Jam es Transit System Fund accounts for the operation and m aintenance of the parishw ide 
transportation program . Financing is provided by federal grants, state grants, bus fares, and transfers 
from other funds. 

PUBLIC SAFETY FUND 

The Public Safety Fund accounts for the paym ent of expenditures and capital outlays for the six 
volunteer fire departm ents and the cost of providing health services to the residents of the parish. 
Financing is provided by ad valorem taxes. 

CRIM INA L CO URT FUND 

The Crim inal Court Fund accounts for the expenditures attributable to the Tw enty-Third Judicial 
District Court. Financing is provided by fines and forfeitures im posed by the district courts. The 
district is com prised of the parishes of St. Jam es, Ascension, and Assum ption. St. Jam es Parish only 
is reported in these statem ents. 

ENHANCED 911 SYSTEM M A INTENANCE FUND 

The Enhanced 911 System M aintenance Fund accounts for the operation and m aintenance of an 
enhanced 911 em ergency telephone system . Financing is provided by ad valorem taxes, and 
em ergency telephone service charges. 

HOUSING DEVELOPM ENT FUND 

The Housing Developm ent Fund is funded by the United States Departm ent of Housing and Urban 
Developm ent. It accounts for im provem ent and developm ent of parish hom es. 

TITLE III-C-2 HOM E DELIV ERED M EALS FUND 

The Title III-C-2 Hom e Delivered M eals Fund accounts for the expenditures in delivering the m eals to 
those citizens w ho are unable to attend any one of the senior citizens' centers. Funding is provided 
by the United States Departm ent of Health and Hum an Services end is passed through the Governor's 
Office of Elderly Affairs and from contributions received on the m eals. 
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TITLE III-C-1 CONGREGATE M EALS FUND 

The Title III-C-1 Congregate M eals Fund represents cost associated w ith feeding the elderly citizens at 
the four senior citizens' centers located throughout the parish. Funding is provided by the United 
States Departm ent of Health and Hum an Services and is passed through the Governor's Office of 
Elderly Affairs end from contributions received on the m eals. 

TITLE III-B SOCIAL SERVICES FUND 

The Title III-B Social Services Fund is used to pay for the adm inistration of program s for the elderly. 
Funding is provided by the United States Departm ent of Health and Hum an Resources end is passed 
through the Governor's Office of Elderly Affairs, 

AREA AGENCY ON AGING - HELPING HANDS FUND 

The Helping Hands Fund originates through donations in the form of over-paym ent of utility bills 
Expenditures include those associated w ith paying for utility and w eatherization bills for the elderly 
Funding is provided by the Louisiana Association of Councils on Aging. 

AREA AGENCY ON AGING - LOCA L SUPPORT FUND 

The Area Agency on Aging - Local Support Fund is used to pay for any expenses not covered by any 
other elderly program . 

AREA AGENCY ON AGING - DISCRETIONARY FUND 

The Area Agency on Aging - Discretionary Fund accounts for any'expenditures associated w ith the 
feeding program for the elderly. Funding is provided by the Governor's Office of Elderly Affairs. 

AREA AGENCY ON AGING - CASH IN LIEU OF COM M ODITIES FUND 

The Cash in Lieu of Com m odities Fund is used to account for the adm inistration of the Food 
Distribution Program funds provided by the United States Departm ent of Agriculture through the 
Louisiana Governor's Office of Elderly Affairs. This program reimburses the service provider on a per 
unit basis for each congregate and hom e-delivered m eal served to an eligible participant so that United 
States food and com m odities m ay be purchased to supplem ent these program s. 

COM M ODITIES DISTRIBUTION FUND 

The Com m odities Distribution Fund accounts for the costs of receiving and delivering food 
com m odities to the low incom e fam ilies w ithin the Parish. Funds are passed through the Louisiana 
Departm ent of Agriculture from the United States Departm ent of Agriculture. 
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W EATHERIZATION AND ENERGY ASSISTANCE FUNDS 

The W eatherization and Energy Assistance program s are funded by the United States Departm ent of 
Energy and passed through the Louisiana Departm ent of Urban and Com m unity Affairs. These funds 
account for the labor and m aterials to w eatherize hom es. 

SENIOR CITIZENS ACTIVITIES FUND 

The Senior Citizens Activities Fund accounts for the operation of the elderly handicrafts projects 
Funds are generated from the sales of handicrafts. 

SENIOR CENTER FUNDS 

The Senior Center Funds ere used to help subsidize the cost for m eals at the senior citizens' centers 
Funding is provided by the Governor's Office of Elderly Affairs. 

HEAD STA RT PROGRAM  FUND 

The Head Start Program Fund accounts for the operations and m aintenance of five educational 
centers. Funding is provided by the United States Departm ent of Health and Hum an Services. 

SUM M ER CHILDCARE PROGRAM  FUND 

The Sum m er Childcare Program Fund is funded by the United States Departm ent of Health and Hum an 
Services to provide sum m er day care facilities for children from  low incom e fam ilies w ho are enrolled 
in the w elfare to w ork program . 

HEAD START ACTIVITY FUND 

The Head Start Activity Fund accounts for m onies raised by the fam ilies of the Head Start children for 
the purpose of providing additional activities for the children such as field trips and graduation parties. 

COM M UNITY SERVICES BLOCK GRA NT FUND 

The Community Services Block Grant (CSBG) Fund accounts for the outreach end housing programs 
adm inistered by the Parish Departm ent of Hum an Resources. Funding is provided by the United 
States Departm ent of Health and Hum an Services and is passed through the Louisiana Departm ent of 
Labor. 

EM ERGENCY FOOD AND SHELTER FUND 

The Em ergency Food and Shelter Fund is used to provide em ergency food vouchers to the needy 
fam ilies in the parish. United W ay provides the funding. 

LOCAL LAW  ENFORCEM ENT BLOCK GRA NT FUND 

The Local Law  Enforcem ent Block Grant Fund is funded by the United States Departm ent of Justice 
for the purpose of reducing crim e end im proving public safety. The funds are used to supplem ent 
special program s of the St. Jam es Parish Sheriff's Departm ent and purchase law enforcem ent 
equipm ent. 
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St. Jam es Parish Council 
Convent, Louisiana 

Special Revenue Funds 
Com bining Balance Sheets, Decem ber 31, 1998 

W ith Com parative Totals as of Decem ber 31, 1997 

Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Tim e certificates of deposit 

Investm ents 
Receivables 
Due from other funds 
Interfund loans receivable 
Toxal asse'Ls 

Liabilities and fund balance 
Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Payroll deductions and 

w ithholdings payable 
Deferred revenues 
Due to other funds 
Interfund loans payable 
Total liabilities 

Fund balance 
Unreserved - undesignated 

Total liabilities and fund balance 

1998 

M aintenance Funds 

Courthouse 
Road Jail and 
and Public Parishw ide 
Bridge Buildings Drainage 

Fire 
Protection 
District 
No. 2 

$1,408,669 $ 17,313 $ 357,008 $ 139,223 

1,468 
1,130,305 

353,507 
1,057,695 

$2,540,~42 $3,~2~,535 

$ 48,770 $ 52,621 

14,864 18,904 

63,634 

2,476,808 
$2,540,442 

7!,525 

1,356,990 
$1,428,515 

Schedule 3 (continued) 
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82,380 
562,428 

~ 1,~03,B36 

$ 26,559 

9,416 

35,975 

965,841 
$ 1,001,816 

15,422 
138,219 

292,B~~ 

$ 13,096 

3,204 

16,300 

276,564 
$292,864 



1998 

Sales Tax Funds 

Solid 
W aste 

Disposal 

Elderly & 
Em ergency Gram ercy 
M edical Parks and Recreation 
Services Recreation District 

$ 499,701 $ 8,929 $157,527 $ 14,951 

179,584 
171,978 
322,346 

$1,173,609 

117,584 
17,774 

$144,287 

$ 93,503 $ 18,811 

292 

96,795 

1,076,814 
$1,173,609 

13,991 

26 

32,828 

111,459 
$144,287 

104,064 
176,505 103,858 
17,774 

$455,870 

$ 14,661 

12,580 

27,241 

428,629 
$455,870 

Parish 

Library 

$ 32,506 
500,000 
640,081 
633,424 

Consolidated 
Road Lighting 

District No. 3A 

$ 454,338 

333,789 
232,188 

$118,809 $ 1,806,011 $1,020,315 

$ 3,644 $ 48,999 $ 7,404 

3,644 

115,165 
$118,809 

12,440 

61,439 

1,744,572 
$ 1,806,011 

7,404 

1,012,911 

$1,020,315 



 

St. Jam es Parish Council 
Convent, Louisiana 

Special Revenue Funds 
Com bining Balance Sheets, Decem ber 31, 1998 

W ith Com parative Totals as of Decem ber 31, 1997 

Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Tim e certificates of deposit 

Investm ents 
Receivables 
Due from other funds 
Interfund loans receivable 

Total assets 

Liabilities and fund balance 
Liabilities: 
A ccounts payable 
Payroll deductions and 
w ithholdings payabTe 

Deferred revenues 
Due to other funds 
Interfund loans payable 
Total liabilities 

Fund balance 
Unreserved - undesignated 
and fund balance 

1998 

St. Jam es 
Transit Public 
System  Safety 

Enhanced 
Crim inal 911 System 
Court M aintenance 

$ 4,089 $ 391,588 $ 5,520 $ 28,585 

1,901 
11,238 

918,843 
843,565 9,316 

6,888 

217,574 
316,716 

$17,228 $2,153,996 $21,724 $562,875 

$10,420 $ 32,560 $11,403 $ 41,500 

7,942 

18,362 

(1,134) 
$17,228 

32,560 

2,121,436 
$2,153,996 

Schedule 3 (continued 
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4,000 5,934 

15,403 

6,321 
$21,724 

47,434 

515,441 
$562,875 

Housing 
Developm ent 

$ - 



1998 

Title Area Agency On Aqing 
C-2 C-1 B 

Hom e Delivered Congregate Social Helping 
M eals M eals Services Hands 

$1,591 

$1,591 

$ 835 

756 

1,591 

$1,591 

$2,901 

$2,158 

743 

2,901 

Local 
Support Discretionary 

$3,493 $ 245 $ 

$3,493 $ 

$ 269 $ 70 $ 

3,224 

3,493 70 

175 
$2,901 $3,493 $ 245 

63 

$ 

$3,418 

747 

$4,165 

$2,145 

2,020 

4,165 

$4,165 

Cash 

In Lieu Of 
Com m odities 

$3,541 

5,634 

$9,175 

$5,319 

3,856 

9,175 

$9,175 



 

St. Jam es Parish Council 
Convent, Louisiana 

Special Revenue Funds 
Com bining Balance Sheets, Decem ber 31, 1998 

W ith Com parative Totals as of Decem ber 31, 1997 

Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 

Tim e certificates of deposit 
Investm ents 
Receivables 
Due from other funds 

Interfund loans receivable 
Total assets 

Liabilities and fund balance 
Liabilities: 
A ccounts payable 
Payroll deductions and 

withholdings payable 
Deferred revenues 
Due to other funds 
Interfund loans payable 
Total liabilities 

Fund balance 
Unreserved - undesignated 
and fund balance 

1998 

Com m odities Energy 
Distribution W eatherization Assistance 

$4,857 

986 

$5,843 

$1,416 

1,416 

4,427 
$5,843 

$885 

$885 

$ 

885 

885 

Senior 
Citizens 
Activities 

$ 3,580 $32,032 

7,470 

$11,050 

$ 5,786 

5,154 

10,940 

110 
$ 885 $11,050 

Schedule 3 (continued) 
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$32,032 

$ 113 

113 

31,919 
$32,032 



1998 

Senior 

Center 
Funds 

$2,201 

$2,201 

$2,087 

114 

2,201 

$2,201 

Sum m er 

Head Start Childcare Head Start 
Program Program A ctivity 

$ 37 $43,439 

51,116 

$51,153 

$44,666 

6,430 
37 

51,153 

$51,153 

$43,439 

1,300 
1,300 

42,139 
$43,439 

$4,228 

$4,228 

Com m unity 

Services Em ergency Local Law 
Block Food and Enforcem ent 
Grant Shelter Block Grant 

$6 

$ $ - 

4,228 
$4,228 $6 

$107 

107 

$107 



 

St. Jam es Parish Council 
Convent, Louisiana 

Special Revenue Funds 
Com bining Balance Sheets, Decem ber 31, 1998 

W ith Com parative Totals as of Decem ber 31, 1997 

Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Tim e certificates of deposit 

Investm ents 
Receivables 
Due from other funds 
Interfund loans receivable 

Total assets 

Liabilities and fund balance 
Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Payroll deductions and 

withholdings payable 
Deferred revenues 
Due to other funds 
Interfund loans payable 
Total liabilities 

Fund balance 
Unreserved - undesignated 

Total liabilities and fund balance 

Schedule 3 (concluded 
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Totals 

1998 1997 

$ 3,626,508 
500,000 

2,848,613 
5,570,226 
365,529 

$12,910,875 

$ 3,373,769 
500,000 

1,646,233 
5,361,750 
313,173 
545,000 

$11,739,925 

$ 488,942 $ 443,068 

112,997 
16,795 

26 
1,300 

620,060 

12,290,815 
$12,910,875 

104,104 
10,180 
75,208 
15,000 

647,560 

11,092,365 
$11,739,925 



 

St. Jam es Parish Council 
Convent, Louisiana 

Special Revenue Funds 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the year ended Decem ber 31, 1998 
W ith 1998 Total Budget (GAAP Basis) 

And Comparative Actual Totals for the year ended December 31, 1997 

Reveunes: 
Taxes: 

Ad valorem 
Sales and use 

Intergovernm ental: 
Federal 
State 
Local 

Fines and forfeits 
Charges for services 
Interest 
In-kind contributions 
Other revenues: 
Com m issions 
Rents and royalties 
Sales 
Telephone service charge 
M iscellaneous 
Total revenues 

1999 
M aintenance Funds 

Courthouse 
Road Jail and 
and Public Parishw ide 
Bridge Buildings Drainage 

Fire 
Protection 
District 
No. 2 

$1,072,036 $1,072,042 $ 420,238 $ 139,451 

34,593 
371,508 

80,587 

2,224 
1,560,948 

Schedule 4 (continued) 

3,238 
16,784 

36,765 

1,4Ol 

144 
1,130,374 

205,631 
48,297 

23,771 

1,824 
699,761 

766 

8,611 

324 
149,152 



1998 
Sales Tax Funds 

$ 

Solid 
W aste 
Disposal 

794,461 

566 

522,967 
27,843 

7,551 
1.353.388 

Elderly & 
Emergency Gramercy 
M edical Parks and Recreation 
Services Recreation District 

$ 
794,461 

338 

2,004 

1 
796,804 

$ 58,099 
794,461 

365 

26,724 
12,977 

47 
13,185 

11.034 
916.892 

Parish 
Library 

Consolidated 
Road Lighting 
District No. 3A 

$107,287 $ 643,250 $ 235,562 

6,729 

1,716 
1,568 

3,570 

51 
120,921 

750 
37,033 

69,351 

3,062 

33,981 
787,427 

Schedule 4 (continued 

5,338 

27,188 

268.088 

St, Jam es 
Transit 
System 

47,187 

62,425 

1,141 
3O7 

386 

5.000 
116.446 



 

St. James Parish Council 
Convent, Louisiana 

Special Revenue Funds 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the year ended December 31, 1998 
W lth 1998 Total Budget (GAAP Basis) 

And Comparative Actual Totals for the year ended December 31, 1997 

Expenditures: 
Current: 
General governm ent: 
Financial administration 
Judicial 
Other-unclassified 

Public safety 
Highways and streets 
Sanitation 
Public transportation 
Health and welfare 
Public housing 
Cult'.tle ~I'~ recr~).tic~r~. 
Econom ic developm ent and assistance 

Capital outlay 

In-kind expenses 
Total expenditures 

Ex cess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Operating transfers in 
Proceeds from capital lease 
Proceeds from credit sales 
Proceeds from loans 
Donation of property 
Operatlrlg transfers out 
Interest on lease purchase 

Total other financing sources (uses} 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and 
other financing sources over (under} 
expenditures and other financing uses 

Fund balance, beginning of year 
Fund balance, end of year 

1998 
M aintenance Funds 

Courthouse 
Road Jail and 
and Pubti0 Padshwlde 
Bridge Buildings Drainage 

44,506 

876,932 

204,498 

3,125,936 

44.506 

859,816 

161,432 

1,065.754 

14,496 

484,886 

37,988 

537,370 

Fire 
Protection 

District 
No. 2 

4,800 

90,959 

95,759 

435,012 64,620 162,391 53,393 

~ 

{13B,763) 

138,783) 

85,500 
(14,099) 

71,401 

21,608 

(52,464) 

(30,856 

24,798 

(55,842) 

(31,044 

296,229 136,021 131,535 22,349 

2,180,579 1,220,969 " 834,306 
$2,476,808 $1,356,990 $ 965,841 

Schedule 4 (continued) 

69 

254,215 
$ 276.564 



1998 
Sales Tax Funds 

Solid 
W aste 
Disposal 

43,680 

1,073,275 

59,988 

1,176,943 

Elderly & 

Emergency 

Medical Parks and 
Services Recreation 

29,924 

813,933 

41,799 

885,656 

31,740 

675,665 

87,967 

795,372 

Gramercy 
Recreation 
District 

3,338 

105,489 

108,827 

Parish 
Library 

22,188 

461,280 - 

134,691 

618,159 

Consolidated 
Road Lighting 
District No. 3A 

8,108 

187,175 

195,283 

St, James 
Transit 

System 

425,109 

3,525 

428,634 

176,445 (88,852) 121,520 12,094 169,268 72,805 (312,188} 

(20,152) 

(20,152 

156,293 

920,521 
$ 1,O76,814 

67,919 

21,499 

(22,932) (80,930) 

44,987 

(43,865) 

155,324 
$ 111,459 

(59,431 

10,107) 

(10,107) 

271,300 

271,300 

62,089 1,987 169,268 72,805 (40,888 

366,540 
$ 428,629 

113,178 
$115,165 

1,575,304 
$ 1,744,572 

Schedule 4 (continued) 

'940,106 
$1,012,911 

39,754 
$ (1,134) 



 

St. Jam es Parish Council 
Convent, Louisiana 

Special Revenue Funds 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the year ended December 31, 1998 
W ith 1999 Total Budget (GAAP Basis) 

And Com parative Actuat Totals for the year ended December 31, 1997 

Revenues: 
Taxes: 
Ad valorem 
Sales and use 

Intergovernm entah 
Federal 
State 
Local 

Fines and forfeits 
Charges for services 
Interest 
In-kind contributions 
Other revenues: 
Com m issions 
Rents and royalties 
Sales 
Telephone service charge 
M iscellaneous 
Total revenues 

1998 

Public 
SafeW 

$ 857,628 

79,280 

936,908 

Schedule 4 (continued) 

Enhanced 

Criminal 911 System 
Court M aintenance 

$267,996 

11,005 
13,895 
137,203 

221 

162,324 

13,983 

~ 

8,440 

75,767 
1,150 

367,326 

Housing 

Development 



1998 

Title 

C-2 
Hom e Delivered 

M eals 

$ 

30,101 

8,411 

38,512 

C-1 
Congregate 
M eals 

$ 

25,703 

9,492 

35,195 

B 

Social 
Services 

$ 

39,843 
4,500 

44,343 

Area Agency On Aging 

Helping Local 
Hands Support Discretionary 

Schedule 4 (continued) 

14,676 

14,676 

Cash 
In Lieu Of 

Commodities 



 

St. James Parish Council 
Convent, Louisiana 

Special Revenue Funds 
Com bining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures end Changes in Fund Balances 

For the year ended December 31, 1998 
W ith 1998 Total Budget (GAAP Basis) 

And Com parative Actual Totals for the year ended Decem ber 31, 1997 

Expenditures: 

Current: 
General governm ent: 
Financial adm inistration 
Judicial 
Other-unclassified 

Public safety 
Highways and streets 
Sanitation 
Public transportation 
Health and welfare 
Public housing 
Culture and recreation 
Econom ic deveTopm ent and assistance 

Capital outlay 
In-kind expenses 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Operating transfers in 
Proceeds from capital lease 
Proceeds from credit sales 
Proceeds from loans 
Donation of property 
Operating transfers out 
Interest on lease purchase 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and 
other financing sources over (under) 
expenditures and other financing uses 

Fund balance, begin~in9 of year 
Fund balance, end of year 

1998 

Public 
Safety 

81,083 

468,095 

636,333 

1,185,511 

Enhanced 
Criminal 911 System 
Court M aintenance 

307,486 

307,486 

9,244 

220,989 

13,999 

244,232 

Housing 
Development 

644 

1,859 

2,503 

(248,603) (145,162) 123,094 (3) 

386,779 

(24,798) 

361,981 

113,378 

2,008,058 
$2,121,436 

Schedule 4 (continued) 

145,162 

145,182 

6,321 
$ 6,321 

750 

(9,793) 
(9,043) 

114,051 

401,390 
"

$515,441 



1998 

C-2 
Hom e Delivered 

M eals 

52,526 

C-1 
Congregate 
M eals 

441813 

44,813 

14,014) (9,618) 

14,014 9,618 

8 
Social 
Services 

44,343 

44,343 

$ $ $ 

Area Agency On Aging 

Helping 
Hands 

2,836 

2,836 

Local 
Support Discretionary 

5 

(740) (5) 

(740) (5) 

915 
$ 175 

.-.._. 

5 
$ 

Schedule 4 (continued) 

74 

14,676 

14,676 

Cash 
In Lieu Of 

Com m odities 

37,587 

"

$ $ 



 

St. James Parish Council 
Convent, Louisiana 

Special Revenue Funds 
Com bining Statem ent of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the year ended Decem ber 31, 1998 

W ith 1998 Total Budget (GAAP Basis) 
And Com parative Actual Totals for the year ended December 31, 1997 

Revenues: 
Taxes: 
Ad valorem 
Sales and use 

Intergovernm entah 
Federal 
State 
Local 

Fines and forfeits 
Charges for services 
Interest 
In-kind contributions 
Other revenues: 
Com m issions 

Rents and royalties 
Sales 
Telephone service charge 
M iscellaneous 
Total revenues 

1998 

Commodities 
Distribution W eatherization 

6,576 

6,576 

Schedule 4 (continued) 

75 

Senior 
Energy Citizens 

Assistance Activities 

511 

46,638 

3,760 
50,909 



1998 

Sen~or 
Center 
Funds 

~ Sum m er 
Head Start Childcare Head Start 
Program Program Activity 

$ $ 

898,964 

180 
232,107 

1,131,251 

265,140 

265,140 

Community 
Services 
Block 
Grant 

Schedule 4 (continued) 

Emergency 
Food and 
Shelter 

Local Law 
Enforcement 
Block Grant 

2,208 

70 

2,278 



 

St. Jam es Parish Council 
Convent, Louisiana 

Special Revenue Funds 
Com bining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the year ended December 31, 1998 

W ith 1998 Total Budget (GAAP Basis) 
And Comparative Actual Tota|a for the year ended December 31, 1997 

Ex penditures: 
Current: 
General governm ent: 
Financial adm inistration 

Judicial 
Other-unclassified 

Public safety 
Highw ays and streets 
Sanitation 
Public transportation 
Health and welfare 
Public housing 
Cutture and rec~'ea!.ion 
Econom ic developm ent and assistance 

Capital outlay 
In-kind expenses 

Total expenditures 

Ex cess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Operating transfers in 
Proceeds from capital lease 
Proceeds from credit sates 
Proceeds from loans 
Donation of property 
Operating transfers out 
interest on )ease purchase 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and 
other financing sources over (under) 
expenditures and other financing uses 

Fund balance, beginning of year 
Fund balance, end of year 

1998 

Commodities 
Distribution W eatherlzation 

13,095 

13,095 

(6,519) 

(6,519) 

10,946 
$ 4.427 

Schedule 4 (continued) 

15,372 

Senior 
Energy Citizens 

Assistance Activities 

90,690 

90,690 

1t0 
$ 110 

37,434 

37,434 

13,475 

13,475 



1998 

Senior 
Center 
Funds 

16,730 

$ 

Summer 
Head Start Childcare Head Start 
Program Program Activity 

844,557 
67,859 
232,107 

1,144,523 

$ 

263,989 

263.989 

4,000 

4,000 

(13,272) 1,151 (144) 

13,272 

13,272 

1,161 (144) 

40,988 
$ 42,139 

4,372 
$4,228 

Community 
Services 
Block 
Grant 

80,222 

8o,22~' 

Emergency 
Food and 
Shelter 

12,712 

Schedule 4 (continued) 

Local Law 
Enforcement 
Block Grant 

2,295 

2,295 

17) 

(17) 

17 
$ 



 

St. James Parish Council 
Convent, Louisiana 

Special Revenue Funds 
Com bining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the year ended Decem ber 31, 1998 
W ith 1998 Total Budget (GAAP Basis) 

And Com paratlve Actual Totals for the year ended December 31, 1997 

Revenues: 

Taxes: 
Ad valorem 
Sales and use 

Intergovernm entah 
Federal 
State 
Local 

Fines and forfeits 
Charges for services 
interest 
in-kind contributions 
Other revenues: 
Com m issions 
Rents and royalties 
Sales 
Telephone service charge 

M iscellaneous 
Total revenues 

1998 

Actua 
Total 

$ 4,873,589 
2,383,383 

1,798,506 

535,034 
78,528 
137,203 
552,548 
385,217 
232,107 

1,448 
25,195 
71,845 
75,757 
67,044 

11,217,404 

Budget 
Total 

$ 4,879,000 
2,399,400 

1,713,050 
674,450 
77,008 
134,500 
545,600 
355,170 
211,400 

1,500 
28,200 
53,800 
67,600 
60,300 

11,200.978 

Scheduel 4 (continued) 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

$ (5,411) 
(16,O17) 

85,456 
139,416) 
1,520 
2,703 
6,948 
30,047 
20,707 

(52) 
(3,005) 
18,045 
8,157 
6,744 
16.426 

1997 

Actual 
Total 

$ 4,871,436 
2,354,157 

1,630,990 
654,622 
87,264 
188,799 
489,710 
339,837 
223,785 

1,344 
24,630 

53,111 
71,478 
46,698 

11,034,861 



 

St. Jam es Parish Council 
Convent, Louisiana 

Special Revenue Funds 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the year ended December 31, 1998 
W ith 1996 Total Budget (GAAP Basis) 

And Comparative Actual Totals for the year ended December 31, 1997 

Expenditures: 

Current: 
General governm ent: 
Financial adm inistration 
Judicial 
Other-unclassified 

Public safety 

Highways and streets 
Sanitation 
Public transportation 
Health and welfare 
Public housing 
Culture and recreation 
Econom ic developm ent and assistance 

Capital outlay 
In-kind expenses 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 

Other financing sources (usasl: 
Operating transfers in 

Proceeds from capital lease 
Proceeds from credit sales 
Proceeds from loans 
Donation of property 
Operating transfers out 
Interest on lease purchase 

Total other financing sources (uses 

1998 

Actual 
Total 

337,613 
307,486 
859,816 

1,267,224 
1,064,107 
1,O73,275 
425,109 

1,276,974 
644 

1,242,434 
1,112,546 
1,451,938 
232,107 

10,651,273 

Budget 
Total 

340,117 
310,700 
848,500 

1,299,370 
1,027,750 
1,079,500 
421,600 

1,275,805 
603 

1,289.950 
1,O65,1OO 
1,084,500 
211,400 

10,274,895 

Variance 
Favorabte 

(Unfavorable) 

2,504 
3,214 

(11,316) 
32,146 

(36,357) 
6,225 

(3,509) 
(1,169) 

(41 ) 
47,616 
(27,446) 
(367,438) 
(20,707) 
376,378) 

1997 

Actual 
Total 

299,476 
330,034 
B70,603 

1 ,O88,604 
988,959 

1 ,O53.240 
351.427 

1,176,342 

1,239,978 
1,032,385 
1,017,011 
223.785 

9,672,044 

566,131 926,083 (359,952) 1,362,817 

668,441 
386,779 
21,499 

85,500 
(420.107) 
(9,793) 

632.319 

773,831 

21,500 

604,700) 
(7,8OO) 

182,831 

(205,390) 
386,779 

(1) 

85,500 
184,593 
(1,993) 

449.488 

413,1B3 
7,288 

184,157 

(728,774 

(124,146 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and 
other financing sources over (under) 
expenditures and other financing uses 1,198,450 1,10B,914 89,536 1,238,671 

Fund balance, beginning of year 
Fund balance, and of year 

11,O92,365 
12,290,815 

11,092,365 
$ 12,201,279 " 

Scheduel 4 (concluded) 

80 

9,853,694 
$ 11,092,365 



D EBT SERV ICE FU N DS 

The debt service funds are used to account for the accum ulation of general obligation bonds principal 
and interest from governm ental resources. Revenues for the debt service funds are provided by ad 
vslorem taxes, sales taxes and interest on investm ents. The parish m aintains the follow ing debt 
service funds: 

PUBLIC IM PROVEM ENT BOND SERIES ST-88 FUND 

The Public Im provem ent Bonds Series ST-88 Fund accum ulates monies for the paym ent of the 
November 1, 1989, bond issue of $500,000 and the M ay 19, 1998 refunding bond issue of 
$361,000. The bonds were issued for im provement to recreational facilities w ithin the parish. 
Financing is provided by an irrevocable pledge of sales tax revenues. 

GRA M ERCY RECREATION DISTRICT FUND 

The Gram ercy Recreation District Fund accum ulates monies for payment of the June 1, 1976, bond 
issue of $125,000. The bonds were issued for improvem ents to recreational facilities of the district. 
Financing is provided by a special annual ad valorem  tax levy w ithin the district. 

EA RLY W A RNING SYSTEM  FUND 

The Early W arning System Fund accum ulates m onies for the paym ent of a lease agreem ent entered 
into by the Parish of St. Jam es and participating industries w ith Prudential Bache Capital Funding. 
These m onies w ere used to construct, operate and m aintain an early w arning system to give adequate 
w arning to all persons in the parish of e real or potential danger. Fu, nding is provided by contributions 
from these industries and interest earned on tim e deposits. 

CO NSOLIDATED GENERA L O BLIGATIO N BONDS 

The Consolidated General Obligation Bonds Fund accounts for the property tax levies needed to 
com ply w ith the interest and principal redem ption requirem ents of the follow ing bond issues: 

Genera 
Genera 
Genera 
Genera 

Obligation Road Bonds Series, 1988, and 1990 
Obligation Bond Series 1993 
Obligation Bond Series 1994 
Obligation Refunding Bond Series 1998 



 

St. Jam es Parish Council 

Convent, Louisiana 

Debt Service Funds 
Com bining Balance Sheets 

Decem ber 31, 1998 

W ith Com parative Totals as of Decem ber 31, 1997 

Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Tim e certificates of deposit 

Investm ents 
Receivables 

Total assets 

Liabilities and fund balance 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 

Interfund payables 
Total liabilities 

Fund balance: 

Reserved for debt service 

Public 
Im provem ent 

Bond 

Series ST-88 

$108,495 

$108,495 

108,495 

Total liabilities and fund balance $108,495 

Schedule 5 

Gram ercy 

Recreation 
District 

$ 99 
3,500 

10,533 

$14,132 

$ 339 

339 

13.793 

$14,132 

Early 
W arning 
System 

Consolidated 
General 

Obligation 
Bonds 

$ 30,184 

566,871 

1,581,684 

$2,178,739 

$ 50,570 
144,500 

195,070 

1.983.669 

$2,178.739 



Totals 

1998 1997 

$ 138,778 
3,500 

566,871 

1,592,217 

$2,301,366 

$ 50,909 
144,500 

195,409 

2,105,957 

$2,301,366 

$ 92,067 
3,500 

376,310 

1,750,890 
$2,222,767 

$ 56,631 
144.500 

201.131 

2,021,636 

$2,222,767 



 

St. James Parish Councit 
Convent, Louisiana 

Debt Service Funds 
Com bining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the year ended Decem ber 31, 1998 
W ith 1998 Total Budget (GAAP Basis) 

And Com parative Actual Totals for the year ended December 31, 1997 

Revenues 
Taxes: 
Ad valorem 

interest 
Contributions from private industry 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 

Current: 
General governm ent: 
Financial adm inistration 

Debt serv ice: 
Principal 
Interest and fiscal charges 
Cost of issuance 
Total expenditures 

1998 
Public 

Improvem ent 
Bond 

Series ST-88 

$ 
3.501 

3,501 

21,000 
25,235 
9,710 
55,965 

Gram ercy 
Recreation 
District 

$10,898 
321 

11,219 

339 

9,000 
1,775 

Early 
W arning 
System 

$ 
4,559 
81,860 
86,419 

125,717 
8,768 

134,485 

Consolidated 
General 

Obligation 
Bonds 

$1,608,327 
49,116 

1,657,443 

56,122 

895,000 
553,300 
35,028 

1,539,450 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
(under) expenditures (52,464) 105 (48,066) 117,993 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Operating transfers in 
Proceeds of refunding bonds 
Operating transfers out 
Transfer to escrow agent 
Total other financing sources (uses 

60,930 10,107 
361,000 

(750) 
355,038) 
86.892 10,107 (750) 

1,775,000 

(1,804,496 
29,496) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other 
financing sources over (under) 
expenditures and other financing uses 34,428 10,212 (48,816) 88,497 

Fund balance, beginning of year 
Fund balance, end of year 

74,067 
$108,495 

Schedule 6 

3,581 
$13,793 

48,816 1,895,172 
$1,983,669 



1998 

Actual 
Totals 

$1,619,225 
57,497 
81,860 

1,758,582 

Budget 
Totals 

$1,621,100 
55,700 
81,900 

1,758,700 

56,481 59,400 

1,050,717 
589,078 
44.738 

1,741,014 

1,050,717 
590,468 
44,700 

1,745,285 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable 

$ (1,875) 
1,797 

(40) 
118 

2,919 

1,390 

(38) 
4,271 

1997 

Actua 
Totals 

$1,817,302 
52,311 
119,713 

1,989,326 

62,086 

978,869 
733,133 

1,774,088 

17,568 13,415 4,153 215,238 

91,037 
2,136,000 

(750) 
2,159,534) 

66,753 

50,000 
2,136,000 

(731) 
(2,160,100) 

25,169 

41,037 63.700 

(19) 
566 

41,584 63,700 

84.321 38.584 45.737 278.938 

2,021,636 
"

$2,105,957 
2,021,636 
$2,060,220 

1,742,698 
$2,021,636 



CA PITA L PROJECTS FUNDS 

Capital project funds are used to account for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities 
other than those financed by proprietary funds end trust funds. The follow ing are the parish's capital 
projects funds: 

PARISHW lDE ROAD IM PROVEM ENT FUND 

The Parishw ide Road Im provem ent Fund accounts for parishw ide road im provem ents. Construction is 
on e continuing basis. Financing is provided by transfers from the Road and Bridge M aintenance 
Fund. 

PARISHW IDE SEW ERAGE CONSTRUCTION FUND 

The Parishw ide Sew erage Construction Fund accounts for the sew erage construction program . This 
program is financed by the United States Environmental Protection Agency (75% ) and the St, James 
Parish Council (25% ) through the sale of general obligation bonds. The program consists of three 
phases, of w hich tw o phases have been com pleted. Actual construction on the third phase has not 
yet begun pending the United States Environm ental Protection Agency's approval for funding. 

CDBG ROAD IM PROVEM ENT FUND 

The CDBG Road Im provem ent Fund accounts for perishw ide road im provem ents funded w ith a 
Louisiana Com m unity Developm ent Block Grant. Funding is provided from the State of Louisiana, 
Division of Adm inistration, Office of Com m unity Developm ent. 

VACHERIE CANAL BACKW ATER PREVENTION FUND 

The Vacherie Canal Backw ater Prevention Fund accounts for the expenditures to construct a 
backw ater control structure in South Vacherie. Funding is provided by the Louisiana Departm ent of 
Transportation and Developm ent w ith m atching funds from the Parishw ide Drainage M aintenance 
Fund. 

86 



 

St. Jam es Parish Council 
Convent, Louisiana 

Capital Projects Funds 
Com bining Balance Sheets 

Decem ber 31, 1998 
W ith Com parative Totals as of Decem ber 31, 1997 

Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Investm ents 

Receivables 
Interfund loans receivable 

Due from other funds 
Total assets 

Liabilities and fund balance 

Liabilities: 

Accounts payable 
Total liabilities 

Fund balance 

Unreserved 

Parishwide 
Road 

Improvement 

$2,584 

$2,584 

2,584 

Total liabilities and fund balance $2,584 

Parishw ide 

Sew erage 

Construction 

Schedule 7 

$276,662 
191,362 

12,100 
144.500 

$624,624 

CDBG 
Road 

Improvement 

$33 

$ 33 

Vacherie Canal 
Backw ater 

Prevention 

$21 

$21 

$ - $ - 

624,624 33 21 

$624,624 $ 33 



Totals 

1998 1997 

$279,300 
191,362 

12,100 

144,500 

9627,262 

627,262 

$627,262 

$271,612 
181,539 

10,603 
144,500 

4,143 

$612,397 

$ 29,194 
29,194 

583.203 

$612,397 



 

St. Jam es Parish Council 
Convent, Louisiana 

Capital Project Funds 
Com bining Statem ent of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the year ended Decem ber 31, 1998 

W ith 1998 Total Budget (GAAP Basis) 
A nd Com parative A ctual Totals for the year ended Decem ber 31, 1997 

Revenues: 
Intergovernm enta] 
Federal 

Interest 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Capital outlay 
Total expenditures 

1998 
Parishw ide 

Road 
Im provem ent 

$ 
176 
176 

47,003 
47,003 

Parishw ide 
Sew erage 

Construction 

$ . 
21,404 
21,404 

CDBG 
Road 

Improvement 

59,387 
59,387 

Vacherie Canal 
Backw ater 
Prevention 

55,356 
55,356 

Excess (deficiency) ofrevenues 
over(under) expenditures (46,827) 21,404 (59,387) (55,356) 

Other financing sources (uses): 
O perating transfers in 
Operating transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses 

128,914 
(59,420) 
69,494 

59,420 55,311 

59,420 55,311 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and 
other financing sources over (under) 
expenditures and other financing uses 22,667 21,404 33 (45 

Fund balance, beginning of year 
Fund balance, end of year 

20,083) 
2,584 

Schedule 8 

603,220 
$624,624 33 

66 
$ 21 



1998 

Actual 
Totals 

21,580 

Budget 
Totals 

$ 
20,200 

Variance 
Favorable 

Unfavorable 

380 

1997 

Actua 
Totals 

$ 450,612 
20,407 

21,580 20,200 1,380 471,019 

161,746 
161,746 

178,300 
178,300 

16,554 
16,554 

1,091,531 
1,091,531 

140,166) (158,100) 17,934 (620,512 

243,645 
(59,420 
184,225 

250,600 

(52,300 
198,300 

44,059 40,200 

583,203 583,203 
$ 627,262 $ 623,403 

(6,955) 
(7,120) 
(14,075) 

3,859 

$ 3,859 

90 

677,795 

(50,722) 
627,073 

6,561 

576,642 
$ 583,203 



ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a m anner sim ilar 
to private business enterprises, w here the parish's intent is that the costs of providing goods or 
services to the general public are financed prim arily through user charges; or w here it has been 
decided that periodic determ ination of net incom e is appropriate for accountability purposes. The 
enterprise funds are as follow s: 

GAS AND W ATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM FUND 

The St. Jam es Parish Gas and W ater Distribution System Fund w as established June 2, 1954, by the 
St. Jam es Parish Police Jury and later acknow ledged by the St. Jam es Parish Council. This fund 
accounts for the sale and distribution of gas and w ater to the residents of St. Jam es Parish. 

ST. JAM ES YOUTH CENTER FUND 

The St. James Youth Center is a juvenile center for children who enter the juvenile justice system and 
is operated by the St. James Parish Council. This fund accounts for the m aintenance, operations and 
m anagement of the youth center. The governing board of the youth center is the St. Jam es Parish 
Council. 



 

St. Jam es Parish Council 
Convent, Louisiana 
Enterprise Funds 

Com bining Balance Sheets, Decem ber 31, 1998 
W ith Com parative Totals as of Decem ber 31, 1997 

A ssets 
Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investm ent securities 
Receivables (net of allowances for 
uncollectibles) 

Inventory 
Prepaid expenses 
Total current assets 

Restricted assets 
Other assets 
Land, buildings, and equipm ent 
(net of accum ulated depreciation) 

Total assets 

Liabilities and fund equity 
Current liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Payroll deductions and w ithholdings payable 
Due to St. Jam es Parish Council 
Other liabilities 
Current portion of capital lease obligation 
Com pensated absences payable 
Total current liabilities 

Payable from restricted assets: 
Deposits 
Bond interest payable 
Bonded debt payable w ithin one year 

Deferred revenues 

Gas & W ater 
Distribution 
System 

$ 145,991 

334,374 
156,186 
44,616 
681,167 

1,007,670 
19,054 

St. Jam es 
Youth 
Center 

$ 400,002 
1,078~272 

509,403 
13,344 
37,653 

2,038,674 

Totals 

1998 1997 

$ 545,993 
1,078,272 

843,777 
169,530 
82,269 

2,719,841 
1,oo7,670 

19,054 

$ 699,141 
617,973 

815,866 
164,338 
94,565 

2,391,883 
848,629 
19,667 

8,795,674 6,479,372 15,275,046 15,391,282 

$10,503,565 $8,518,046 $19,021,611 $18,651,461 

177,406 

212,146 
73,433 

165,260 
628,245 

164,290 
53,085 

225,144 

64,922 
66,826 

7,387 
3,629 

95,552 
238,316 

$ 242,328 
66,826 
212,146 
80,820 
3,629 

260,812 
866,561 

164,29o 
53,085 

225,144 

Capital lease obligation 3,280 3,280 
Bonds or certificates of indebtedness payable 1,767,155 340,000 2,107,155 

Total liabilities 2
,837,919 581,596 3,419,515 

Equity: 
Contributed capital 
Retained earnings: 
Reserved for debt service 
Unreserved-undesignated 
Total retained earnings 

Total equity 

Total liablities and equity 

4,866,345 

565,151 
2,234,150 
2,799,301 
7,665,646 

7,922.888 12,789,233 

565,151 
13,562 2,247,712 
13,562 2,812,863 

7,936,450 15,602,096 

$ 148,528 
59,236 
177,099 
87,340 
3,322 

243,161 
718,686 

134,660 
15,053 

199,949 
35,000 
6,909 

2,445,407 
3,555,664 

12,550,001 

498,966 
2,046,830 
2,545,796 
15,095,797 

$10,503,565 $8,518,046 $19,021,611 $18,651,461 

Schedule 9 



 

St. Jam es Parish Council 
Convent, Louisiana 
Enterprise Funds 

Com bining Statem ent of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Retained Earnings 
For the year ended Decem ber 31, 1998 

W ith 1998 Total Budget (GAAP Basis) 
And Com parative Actual Totals for the year ended Decem ber 31, 1997 

Operating revenues: 
Charges for sales and services 
Ad valorem tax 
Other 
Total operating revenues 

Operating expenses: 
Cost of sales and services 
Payrolls 
General and adm inistrative 
Depreciation and am ortization 
Total operating expenses 

Operating incom e 

Nonoperating revenues (expenses) 
interest incom e 
Bond interest expense 
Grants 
Other 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses 

Incom e (loss) before operating transfers 

Other financing sources 
Operating transfers in 
Total other financing sources 

Net incom e (loss 

Retained earnings (deficit), beginning of year 

Retained earnings, end of year 

Schedule 10 

1998 
Gas & W ater 
Distribution 
System 

$2,533,763 

121,557 
2,655,320 

1,O15,282 
740,222 
480,441 
384,778 

2,~20,723 

St. Jam es 
Youth 
Center 

$2,539,406 
214,407 
14,426 

2,768,239 

186,O48 
1,441,393 
740,007 
281,499 

2,648,947 

34,597 119,292 

41,911 
129,802 

87,891 

(53,294 

60,223 
(23,556 
164,177 

225 
201,069 

320,361 

53,294) 320,361 

2,852,595 (306,799 

$2,799,301 $ 13,562 



1998 

Actual 

Total 

$5,073,169 
214,407 
135,983 

5,423,559 

1,201,330 
2,181,615 
1,220,448 
666,277 

5,269,670 

Budget 
Total 

$5,274,800 
214,700 
123,900 

5,613,400 

1,234,500 
2,163,200 
1,517,300 
643,500 

5,558,500 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

$(201,631 
(293 

12,083 

189,841) 

33,170 
(18,415 
296,852 
(22,777 
288,830 

1997 

Actua 
Total 

$5,047,214 
214,011 
142,304 

5,403,529 

1,150,907 
2,087,056 
1,252,876 
629,816 

5,~20,655 

153,689 54,900 98,989 282,874 

102,134 

(153,358 
164,177 

225 
113,178 

90,000 
(153,100 
209,500 
(117,800 
28,600 

12,134 
(258 

(45,323 
118~025 
84,578 

73,867 
214,278 
80,479 

225 

(59,707) 

267,067 83,500 183,567 223,167 

85,053 
85,053 

267,067 83,500 183,567 308,220 

2,545,796 2,545,796 

$2,812,863 $2,629,296 $ 183,567 

2,237,576 

$2,545,796 



 

St. Jam es Parish Council 

Convent, Louisiana 
Enterprise Funds 

Com bining Statement of Cash Flows 
For the year ended Decem ber 31, 1998 

W ith Com parative Totals for the year ended Decem ber 31
, 1997 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Operating incom e 

Adjustments to reconcile operating income 
to net cash provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation and amortization 
Provision for uncollectible accounts 
W rite off of uncollectible accounts 

Loss (gain) on disposal of capital assets 
Changes in assets and liabilities: 

Accounts receivable 

Inventory 
Prepaid expenses 

Accounts payable 

Payroll deductions and withholdings payable 
Due 1o St. Jam es Parish Council 
Other liabilities 

Compensated absences 
Deferred revenue 
Custom ers' deposits 
Net cash provided by operating activities 

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities 
Operating transfers in 

Donations/grants received 
Net cash provided by noncapital 

financing activities 

Cash flow s from capital and related 

financing activities: 
Principal repayment of debt 
Interest paid on debt 

Acquisition and consvuction of capital assets 
Capital contributed 

Repayments of capital lease borrow ings 
Transfer to escrow agent for bond refunding 
Grant from state governm ent 

M iscellaneous paym ents 
Net cash used for capital and related 

financing activities 

Gas & W ater 
Distribution 

System 

St. Jam es 

Youth 

Center 

Totals 

1998 1997 

$ 34,597 $119,292 $ 153,889 $ 282,874 

384,778 
3,843 

(38,176) 
(3,705) 
16,823 

59,897 

35,069 
(4,926) 
9,001 

35,000) 
29,630 
491,831 

199,949) 
(81,638) 
191,218) 
35,908 

(72.055) 
100.000 

281,499 
6,762 

(3,786) 

3,506 

(1,487) 
(4,527) 
33,903 

7,590 

(22) 

8,650 

451,380 

164.677 

164,677 

(70,000) 
(25,150) 
236,070) 

3,322 

(275 

666,277 
10,605 

(3,786 

34,670) 
(5,192) 
12,296 

93,800 

7,590 
35,047 

(4,926) 
17,651 

35,000) 
29,630 
943.211 

164,677 

164,677 

(269,949) 
(106,788) 
(427,288) 
35,908 

(3,322) 
(72,055) 
100,000 

(275) 

629,816 
11,110 

(83,848) 
897 

91,483 

21,315 
8,269 

145,916) 
2,065 
89,365 

3,767 
14,210 

(60,000) 
23,822 
869,228 

85,053 
80,979 

166,032 

(245,315) 
(216,750) 
(125,131) 
38,746 

(3,040) 

(275) 

(408,952) (334,817) (743,7691 (551,765 

Schedule 11 (continuedl 
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St. Jam es Parish Council 

Convent, Louisiana 
Enterprise Funds 

Combining Statem ent of Cash Flows 
For the year ended Decem ber 31, 1998 

W ith Comparative Totals for the year ended December 31, 1997 

Cash flow s from investing activities: 

interest received on investm ents 
M aturation of certificates of deposit 
Proceeds from sales of investm ents 
Purchase of certificates of deposits 

Purchase of investments 

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow inform ation: 
Noncash capital and related activities: 

Utility plant, property and equipm ent contributed 
by subdividers 

Bond issuance costs paid 
Proceeds from bonds issued to refund capital debt 

Gas & W ater 
Distribution 
System 

41,850 
120,000 
28,400 

150,000) 
(20,338) 
19,912 

102,791 
521,804 

$ 624,595 

$ 
$ 
$ 

103,324 
18,816 

900,000 

Schedule 11 (concluded) 
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St. Jam es 

Youth 
Center 

60,223 

(460,299) 
(400,076) 

(118,836 
518,838 
$400,002 

Totals 

1998 1997 

102,073 
120,000 
28,400 

(150,000) 
(480,637) 
380,164 

(16,045 
1,040,642 

$1,O24,597 

$ 103,324 

$ (18,816 
$ 900,000 

73,786 
105,000 

10,500 

120,000) 
262,911) 
193,625) 

289,870 
750,772 

$1,040,642 

$ 50,223 
$ 
$ 



INTERNA L SERV ICE FU N D 

Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by one 
departm ent or agency to other departm ents or agencies of the governm ent, end to other 
governm ental units, on a cost reim bursem ent basis. 

GROUP HOSPITALIZATION CLA IM S CLEARING FUND 

Group Hospitalization Claim s Clearing Fund 
received for paym ent of group health and life 
Parish's group health insurance program . 

accounts for em ployee and em ployer contributions 
nsurance prem ium s, and health insurance claim s of the 
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St. Jam es Parish Council 
Convent, Louisiana 
Internal Service Fund 

Group Hospitalization Claim s Clearing Fund 
Com parative Balance Sheet 

Decem ber 31, 1998 and 1997 

Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 

Investm ents 

Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles) 
Total assets 

Liabilities and fund balance 
Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Liability for claim s 
Total liabilities 

Fund equity: 

Reserved 
Total fund equity 

Total liabilities and fund equity 

Schedule 12 
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Totals 
1998 

$ 984,189 
231,747 

14,780 
$1,230,716 

$ 958 
2 20,000 
220,958 

1,009,758 
1,009,758 
$1,230,716 

1997 

$ 792,453 
219,852 

13,305 
$1,025,610 

$ 
220,000 
220,000 

805,610 
805,610 

$1,025,610 



 

ST. JAMES PARISH COUNCIL 
Convent, Louisiana 
Internal Service Fund 

Group Hospitalization Claims Clearing Fund 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Retained Earnings 

Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual for the year ended December 31, 1998 
W ith Comparative Actual Totals for the year ended December 31, 1997 

O perating revenues: 
Charges for services 

Other 
Total operating revenues 

Operating expenses: 
Cost of sales and services 
General and adm inistrative 
Total operating expenses 

Operating income (loss) 

Nonoperating revenues (expenses): 
Interest incom e 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 

Net income (loss) 

Retained earnings, beginning of year 
Retained earnings, end of year 

1998 

$1,033,300 

1.033,300 

662,300 
169,500 

Actual 

$1,047,575 

1.047.575 

724,623 
169.432 

831,800 894.055 

201,500 153.520 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

$ 14,275 

14.275 

(62,323) 
68 

(62,255) 

(47,980) 

1997 

Actual 

$1,156,616 
136 

1.156.752 

777,386 
201,298 
978.684 

178.068 

50,000 50.628 628 40,922 
50.000 50.628 628 40.922 

251,500 204,148 (47,352) 218,990 

805,610 
$1,057,110 

Schedule 13 

805,610 
$1,009,758 

586.620 
$ 805,610 



 

ST. JAMES PARISH COUNCIL 
Convent, Louisiana 
Internal Service Fund 

Group Hospitalization Claim s CIeadng Fund 
Statement of Cash Flows 

For the years ended December 31, 1998 and 1997 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Operating .income 
Changes in assets and liablilities 
Accounts receivables 
Accounts payable 
Liability for claims 
Net cash provided by operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Interest received on investm ents 
Proceeds from sale of investm ents 
Purchase of investments 
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and ca sh equivalents, beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 

Schedule 14 
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1998 1997 

$153,520 $178,068 

(1,475) 
958 

153.003 

50,628 

(11,895) 
38.733 

2,796 

(25,000) 
155.864 

40,922 
88,628 

129.550 

191.736 285.414 

792,453 507,039 

$984,189 $792,453 



CO M PENSA TIO N PA ID CO UNCIL M EM BERS, 
PA RISH PRESID ENT A N D BO A RD M EM BERS 

The schedule of com pensation paid to Parish Council and board m em bers and Parish President is 
presented in com pliance w ith House Concurrent Resolution No. 54 of the 1979 Session of the 
Louisiana Legislature. 

PA RISH COUNCIL 

The com pensation of the Parish Council m em bers is included in the legislative expenditures of the 
General Fund. In accordance w ith Louisiana Revised Statute 33:1233, the Council has elected the 
m onthly paym ent m ethod of com pensation, and under this m ethod, the Council mem bers receive 
$856 per m onth, w hile the Council chairm an receives $963 per month. 

PARISH PRESIDENT 

Com pensation paid the Parish President is included in executive expenditures of the General Fund in 
accordance w ith St. Jam es Parish Council Ordinance 82-24 and Louisiana Revised Statute 33:1421. 

BOA RD M EM BERS 

As per authority granted by the Parish Hom e Rule Charter, the Parish Council has created six 
recreation districts, a Coastal Zone M anagem ent board, a planning com m ission, and a Housing 
Authority Board. The council has also approved a per diem of $40 for board mem bers attendance at 
the board m eetings. 
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ST. JAM ES PARISH COUNCIL 
Convent, Louisiana 

Schedule of Com pensation Paid Council M embers, 
Parish President and Board M embers 

For the Year Ended Decem ber 31, 1998 

PARISH COUNCIL 
Elton Aubert 
Eric Poche, St. 
Tim othy Roussel, Chairman 
Elw yn Bocz 
Ralph Patin 
Jam es M . Brazan 
Oliver Cooper, Sr. 
Dale J. Hymel, Jr., Parish President 

Total 

Robert Hidalgo 
Ervin Roussel 
M elissa H. Laurent 
Anthony Joseph 
John M eaux, Chairm an 

Total 

Clifton W illiamson, Chairm an 
Brenda M albrough 
Dave Robertson 
Vernon Guidry 
Allen Stark 

Total 

Ernest Davis 
M ichael Chabaud 
Philip Creel, Chairman 
Gary Albert 
Dale M elancon 

Total 

Lloyd Jones 
Matthew M ayho, Chairm an 
Sylvester W inchester, Sr. 
Dale Dennis 
Odell Lum ar, Ill 

Total 

Schedule 15 (continued) 
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$ 10,272 
10,420 
11,407 
10,272 
10,272 
10,272 
10,272 
71t500 

$14
_ _ _ _ _

4r687 

$ 480 
480 
480 
480 
48O 

$2~400 

$ 400 
400 
320 
240 
240 

$1r600 

$ 280 
480 
480 
480 
480 

$2 2OO 

$ 480 
480 
480 
360 
440 

$2~240 
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St. Jam es Parish Council 
Convent, Louisiana 

Schedule of Compensation Paid Council M embers, 
Parish President and Board Members (Continued) 

Jsm ay Jones 
GeraTd Herbert 
Zedel Oubre 
Stephen Steib 
Thom as Joseph 
Nina Johnson, Secretary 

Total 

Lionel Harry  
Barry Reulet 
W endy LeBeouf 
Vincent Reulet 
Blain Bourgeois 

Total 

Charles Duhe, Chairm an 
EIton Chenier 
Gene St. Pierre 
M arlis Fletcher 
Donald Him es 
Charles M artin 
Edward Arcenesux 
Donovan Steib 

Total 

Rev. Nolan Albert 
David Laborde 
Glenn M illet, Chairman 
Roland Perque 
Danny St. Pierre 
W ilson M itchell 
Thomas George 
Arthur M atherne 

Total 

John Brass 
Sam uel Jones 
Sylvia Steib 
Lorraine W ebster 
Jessie Singleton 

Total 

Schedule 15 (concluded 
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$ 440 
440 
440 
440 
440 

1,100 
$3,300 

$ 160 
200 
200 
240 
160 
$960 

$ 480 
360 
440 
240 
440 
280 
400 
240 

$2,880 

$ 400 
480 
520 
520 
480 
400 
400 
520 

$3~720 

$ 440 
400 
400 
360 
360 

$1,960 
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REPORT ON COM PLIANCE W ITH REQUIREM ENTS 
APPLICABLE TO EACH M AJOR PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL 
OVER COM PLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE W ITH OM B CIRCULAR A-133 

To the President and M em bers 
St. Jam es Parish Council 
Convent, Louisiana 

Com pliance 

W e have audited the com pliance of the St. Jam es Parish Council, State of Louisiana, 
w ith the types of com pliance requirem ents described in the U. S. Office of 
M anagem ent and Budget lOM B) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplem ent that are 
applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 
1998. St. James Parish Council, State of Louisiana's major federal programs are 
identified in the sum m ary of audit's results section of the accom panying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs. Com pliance w ith the requirem ents of law s, 
regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is 
the responsibility of St. Jam es Parish Council, State of Louisiana's m anagem ent. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on St. Jam es Parish Council, State of 
Louisiana's com pliance based on our audit. 

W e conducted our audit in accordance w ith generally accepted auditing standards; the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governm ent A uditing Standards, 
issued by the Com ptroller General of the United States, and OM B Circular A-133, 
A udits of States, Local Governm ents, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards 
and OM B Circular A-133 require that w e plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about w hether noncom pliance w ith the types of com pliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major 
federal program occurred. An audit includes exam ining, on e test basis, evidence 
about St. Jam es Parish Council, State of Louisiana's com pliance w ith those 
requirem ents end perform ing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the 
circum stances. W e believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
Our audit does not provide a legal determ ination on St. Jam es Parish Council, State of 
Louisiana's com pliance w ith those requirem ents. 

In our opinion, St. Jam es Parish Council, State of Louisiana, com plied, in all m aterial 
respects, w ith the requirem ents referred to above that are applicable to each of its 
major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 1998. However, the results 
of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncom pliance w ith those 
requirem ents, w hich ere required to be reported in accordance w ith OM B Circular 
A-133 and w hich are described in the accom panying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs as item s 98-01 and 98-02. 

Be*Ion Rouge " Donoldsonville ~ Gonzales ' New Orleans ' St rroncisville 
Associated Offices in P~incipal Cilles of the United States 



nternal Control Over Com pliance 

The m anagem ent of St. Jam es Parish Council, State of Louisiana, is responsible for 
establishing and m aintaining effective internal control over com pliance w ith 
requirem ents of law s, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal program s. 
In planning and perform ing our audit, w e considered St. James Parish Council, State 
of Louisiana's internal control over com pliance w ith requirem ents that could have a 

direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determine our auditing 
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on com pliance and to test and 
report on internal control over com pliance in accordance w ith OM B Circular A~133. 

O ur consideration of the internal control over com pliance w ould not necessarily 
disclose all m atters in the internal control that m ight be m aterial w eaknesses. A 
m aterial w eakness is a condition in w hich the design or operation of one or m ore of 
the internal control com ponents does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that 
noncom pliance w ith applicable requirem ents of law s, regulations, contracts and grants 

that would be material in relation to a major federal program being audited may occur 
and not be detected w ithin a tim ely period by em ployees in the norm al course of 
perform ing their assigned functions. W e noted no m atters involving the internal 
control over com pliance and its operation that w e consider to be m aterial w eaknesses. 

This report is intended solely for the inform ation of m anagem ent, others w ithin the 
organization, St. Jam es Parish Council, and federal aw arding agencies and pass- 
through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other 
than these specified parties. How ever, this report is a m atter of public record and its 
distribution is not lim ited. 

M etairie, 
M ay 14, 

Louisiana 
1999 
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ST. JAM ES PARISH COUNCIL 
Convent, Louisiana 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Aw ards 
For the Year Ended Decem ber 31, 1998 

FEDERAL GRANTOR/ 
PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR NAM E/ 

PROGRAM TITLE 

Passed through Louisiana Departm ent of 
Health and Human Resources: 
State Administrative M atching Grants for Food Stamp Program 

Passed through Louisiana Department of 
Agriculture - Food Distribution 

Passed through Louisiana Departm ent of Education: 
School Breakfast Program 
National School Lunch Program 
Sum m er Food Service Program for Children 

Total United States Departm ent of Agriculture 

United States Departm ent of Transportation 
Passed through Louisiana Departm ent of Transportation and 
and Development - Federal Transit Administration 

Nonurban~zed Form ula Grants, Section 5311 
FTA Grant LA-18-X016; SPN 741-47-0105 
FTA Grant LA-18-X015; SPN 741-47-0104 
Total United States Departm ent of Transportation 

n 

Passed through Louisiana Departm ent of Public 
Safety and Corrections: 
Em ergency M anagem ent Assistance 
Em ergency Food and Shelter National Board Program - 

passed through United W ay of America 
Passed through Louisiana Departm ent of M ilitary Affairs: 
Disaster Assistance Program 
Hazard M itigation Grant Program 

Total Federal Em ergency M anagem ent Agency 

United States Departm ent of Housin~l and Urban Develoom en 
Direct program - Housing Counseling Assistance Program 

Schedule 16 (continued) 
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CFDA 
NUM BER 

10.561 

10.550 

10.553 
10.666 
10.559 

20.509 
20.509 

83.503 

85.523 

83.516 
83.548 

14.156 

FEDERAL 
EXPENDITURES 

$ 3,481 

6.576 

33,786 
54,537 
100,439 
198r819 

36,745 
10,44_2 
47,187 

12,889 

12,712 

208,636 
56,550 
290,787 

2,500 



 

ST, JAM ES PARISH COUNCIL 
Convent, Louisiana 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
For the Year Ended Decem ber 31, 1998 

FEDERAL GRANTOR/ 
PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR NAM E/ 

PROGRAM TITLE 

United States Departm ent of Health and Human Services 
Direct program - Adm inistration for Children, Youth, and 
Families - Head Start 

Passed through Louisiana Department of Labor - 
Com m unity Services Block Grant 

Passed through Louisiana Department of Health and 
Human Resources (DHH)- Low Incom e Home Energy Assistance 

Passed through Governor's Office of Elderly Affairs - 
Special Program s for the Aging: 
Title VII - Long-Term Care Ombudsm an Services 
Title I]1 - Parts A and B Grants for Supportive 

Services and Senior Centers 
Title I11-C-1 
Title 111-C-2 
Title III-D 
Title liI-F 
USDA - Cash-in-lieu of com m odities 

Passed through Louisiana Department of Social Services - 
Child Care and Development 81ock Grant 
Family Preservation and Support Serv ices 

Total United States Department of Health and Hum an Services 

United States Deoartm ent of Enem y 

CFDA 
NUM BER 

FEDERAL 
EXPENDITURES 

93.600 898,964 

93.569 

93.568 

93.042 

93.044 
93.045 
93.045 
93.046 
93.043 
10.570 

93.575 
93.556 

80,222 

90,690 

2,205 

34,992 
25,703 
30,101 
1,107 
1,539 

37,587 

263,989 
7,099 

1,474,198 

Passed through Louisiana DHH - Office of Com munity Services - 
W eatherization Assistance for Low -incom e Persons 81.042 15,372 

United States Deoartm ent of Com m erce 
Passed through Louisiana Departm ent of Natural Resources 
Coastal Zone M anagem ent 

Total 

Non-M onetary Assistance 
Food Distribution (Com modities 

Total Federal Assistance Expended 
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11.419 18,750 

2,047,613 

10.550 28,752 
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ST. JAMES PARISH COUNCIL 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

YEAR ENDED DECEM BER 31. 1998 

SECTION I-SUM MARY OF AUDIT'S RESULTS 

FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

Type of auditor's report issued 

nternal control over financial reporting: 

M aterial weaknesses identified? 

Unqualified 

Yes X No 

Reportable conditions identified that are not considered 
to be m aterial weaknesses? Yes X None reported 

Noncom pliance m aterial to financial statements notes? 

FEDERA L AW A RDS 

nternal control over major programs 

M aterial weaknesses identified? 

Reportable conditions identified that are not considered 
to be m aterial weaknesses? 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs: 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported 
in accordance with Section 510(a) of Circular A-133? 

Identification of major programs: 

CFDA No. 

93.600 

93.575 

Nam e of Federal Proeram 
Department of Health and Human Services: 
Direct program - Headstart 

Passed through Louisiana Departm ent of Social 
Serv ices - Child Care and Developm ent Block Grant 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between types A and B programs 

Audit qualified as low-risk auditee 

SECTION II-FINANCIAL STATEM ENT FINDINGS 

None 
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Yes X No 

Yes X No 

Yes X None reported 

Unqualified 

X Yes No 

$300,000 

X Yes No 



 

ST. JAM ES PARISH COUNCIL 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

YEAR ENDED DECEM BER 31. 1998 

SECTION Ill-FEDERAL AW ARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

Findinq No. 

98-01 

Condition: 

Criteria: 

Effect: 

Cause 

Proqram 
U.S. Department of Health 
and Hum an Services: 

CFDA No 
Grant 
Num ber 

Headstart Program 93.600 66CH0176717 

A one-time grant was awarded for the repairs to 
floors in Head Start classroom s. These funds 
were not fully expended due to resources being 
utilized from other Council funds. The surplus that 
resulted was used to construct another Head Start 
classroom . 

The grant award from the U.S. Departm ent of 
Health and Human Serv ices provides that funds 
be utilized for the purposes requested. If funds 
remain at the end of the grant year, the surplus is 
to be returned to the ~rantor. 

Questioned 
Costs 

The funds used from the grant award for the 
repairs to the floors to build a new classroom for 
Head Start are potentially unallowable costs. $33,895 

Personnel charged with the adm inistration of the 
program were not aware that approval has to be 
requested to use the funds for other Head Start 
im provem ents 

Recom mendation: All personnel involved in the adm inistration of 
Federal programs should be familiar with the 
allowability of costs under the Cost Circular, W e 
recommend that the personnel become familiar 
with these applicable rules and regulations and the 
provisions of the grant award. 

Management's 
Response: A request for the use of the one-time grant award 

for the repairs to the Head Start floors to be used 
to construct a new Head Start classroom was 
made to the grantor in December, 1998. The 
request was approved by the Department of 
Health end Human Services in April, 1999. The 
personnel involved with the adm inistration of 
Federal awards will be trained in the allowability of 
costs for Federal awards 
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ST. JAM ES PARISH COUNCIL 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

YEAR ENDED DECEM BER 31. 1998 

SECTION In-FEDERAL AW ARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (Continued) 

Findinq No. 

98-02 

Condition: 

Criteria 

Effect: 

Cause 

Pro aram 

U. S. Department of Health 
and Human Services: 

G rant 
CFDA No. Number 

Passed through Louisiana 
Department of Social 
Services - Child Care and 
Developm ent Block Grant 93.575 519972 

Four of the children enrolled in the program do not 
meet eligibility requirements. 

Children in the fam ily must be living with parents 
or guardians attending a job training or 
educational program , or working, or in school part- 
tim e and working part-time. 

These children are ineligible to be enrolled in the 
program . 

The personnel involved in the enrollm ent of the 
children in the program were not fam iliar w ith the 
provisions of the Cost Circular. 

Recom m endation: All personnel involved in the enrollm ent and 
adm inistration of the program should be familiar 
with the eligibility requirements of the children to 
be enrolled in the program. 

Managem ent's 
Response: Three of the children's mothers are volunteers at 

the centers where the children are enrolled. 
Management considers that these volunteers are 
undergoing training that will provide the mothers 
with job skills. Management considers these 
volunteers for positions at the center whenever 
there is a position available. M anagem ent will 
also institute procedures to insure that eligibility 
requirements are met. 
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ST. JAM ES PARISH CO UNCIL 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 1998 

SECTION I-PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

None 
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ST. JAM ES PARISH COUNCIL 
REQUIRED SUPPLEM ENTARY DISCLOSURE - UNAUDITED 

YEAR ENDED DECEM BER 31. 1998 

YEAR 2000 ISSUES 

The year 2000 issue consists of two shortcomings that make computer-processing systems unable to 
read year-date data beyond the year 1999. The first shortcom ing is m any com puter program s contain 
abbreviated dates that eliminate the first tw o digits of the year. Therefore, some computer programs may 
recognize January 1, 2000 as January 1, 1900 and process data incorrectly or stop processing 
altogether. The second shortcoming is some computers will be unable to detect the year 2000 as a leap 
year and may not register the additional day and data calculations may be incorrect. 

There are four necessary stages to complete in order to identify and address the year 2000 issue: 
Awareness Stage, Assessment Stage, Remediation Stage and Validation/Testing Stage. The Parish has 
completed an inventory of computer systems and other electronic equipment that may be affected by the 
year 2000 issue and that are cdtical to conducting the operations of the Parish. The following is a list of 
the stages of work in process as of December 31, 1998, for the com puter systems or electronic 
equipm ent deemed critical to the Parish's operations: 

Assessment Stage 

System 

Emergency Communication System Vendor has been contacted to determine a 
proposed solution. 

Juvenile Detention Fire Alarm System Vendor has been contacted to determ ine a 
proposed solution. 

Building Clim ate Control 

Remediation Stage 

Financial Management System 

Utility Billing System 

Vendor has been contacted to determ ine a 
proposed solution. 

Action Taken 

New software and hardware has been installed 
by an outside vendor. 

New hardware has been purchased and 
installed by an outside vendor; a contract has 
been entered to purchase new software from an 
outside vendor. 

116 



 

O fl 
2324 S 

]elephone (504} 837-5990 ' FAX (504) 834 3609 
www pncpa corn 

To the President and M embers 
St. Jam es Parish Council 
Convent, Louisiana 

M anagem ent Report 

W e have audited the general purpose financial statements of the St. Jam es Parish Council, State of 
Louisiana, for the year ended Decem ber 31, 1998 as listed in the table of contents, and have issued our 
report thereon dated M ay 14, 1999. W e conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted 
auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by th e Comptroller General of the United States. 

A s part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether St. Jam es Parish Council, State of Louisiana's 
general purpose financial statem ents are free of m aterial m isstatem ent, we perform ed tests of its 
com pliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants, noncomplian ce with which 
could have a direct and m aterial effect on the determ ination of financial statem ent am ounts. Itowever, 

providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and 
accordingly, we do not express sueh an opinion. 

State law [Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513(A)(5)(a)] provides that the Legislative Auditor may, at his 
discretion, accept audits prepared by licensed certified public accountants provided that, am ong other 
requirem ents, such audits are com pleted within six m onths of the close of the entity's fiscal year. 

"iq~e audit was completed by the report date of M ay 14, 1999 and presented to you at a Council m eeting 
prior to June 30, 1999. At your request, Postlethwaite & N etterville was supposed to send the required 
reports to the Legislative Auditor. W e provided you with copies of the reports which we understand have 
been provided to the proper authorities except th e Legislative Auditor. Inadvertently, the reports were not 
sent by Postlethwaite & Netterville by the statutory completion date of June 30, 1999. The failure to 
com ply with state law is an issue of noncom pliance. 

This m anagem ent report does not affect our reports dated M ay 14, 1999, but is a supplem ent thereto 

This report is intended solely for the inform ation and use of m anagem ent, others within the organization
, 

St. Jam es Parish Council and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to 
be and should not be used by anyone other than th ese specified parties. However, this report is a matter 
of public record and its distribution is not lim ited. 

I 

M eta irie, Louisiana 
July 21, 1999 

Baton Rouge ~ Donaldsonvil]e ' Gonzales ~ New Orleans ~ St Fronclsville 
Assoc;olecl Offices in Plincipal Cities of tile Uniled Stales 


